
AGENDA 
COUNCIL MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
July 13, 2021 

1:00 pm  
** Council Chambers 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES/NOTES

1. Council Committee Meeting Minutes
• June 22, 2021

2. Council Meeting Minutes
• June 22, 2021

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
• Chinook Arch eNewsletter

• Summer 2021 Page Turner
2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3
4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4

• Crowsnest Pincher Creek Landfill Association
• Minutes of April 21, 2021 & May 19, 2021

5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Report
• Report from Administration and Public Works dated July 6, 2021
• Call Log

2. Finance

a) Q2 Financial Summary
• Report from Director of Finance, dated July 7, 2021

b) Public Auction – Conditions and Reserve Bids
• Report from Director of Finance, dated June 30, 2021

3. Planning and Development

a) AES Monthly Reports
• Report for June 2021
• Report for July 2021
• Call Log

b) Update from Crowsnest Pass RCMP
• 4th Quarter Stats for the Crowsnest Pass Detachment
• Detachment Boundaries

c) Road Closure Bylaw No. 1331-21, NE 12-7-3 W5M
• Report from Director of Development and Community Services, dated July 7, 2021

d) Southern Alberta Land Trust Society  - Conservation Easement – Ripley
• Report from Director of Development and Community Services, dated July 7, 2021

e) Request to Place Irrigation Pipe Within Road Allowance (RR 30-2A)
• Report from Director of Development and Community Services, dated July 7, 2021

f) Request to Harvest Timber on MD Road Allowances
• Report from Director of Development and Community Services, dated July 7, 2021

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fmailchi.mp%2F76d3256079cd%2Fchinook-arch-newsletter-summer2021&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc2092392d6954223de9808d93cc6ba42%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637607646676528465%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=oy6%2B1uY1ARdcruuoxCtdPs2QfcSYKpCyGNxuRtbx1CA%3D&reserved=0


g) Update of Policy C-AES-001 License of Occupation
• Report from Director of Development and Community Services, dated July 7, 2021

4. Municipal

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report
• Report from CAO, dated July 7, 2021
• Shared Goal Progress

H. CORRESPONDENCE

1. For Action

a) Concerns on Safety at Blue Bridge
• Letter of Concern from Brent Barbero

b) Request from RMA
• Seeking Input - AER Directive XXX: Licensee Lift-cycle Management

c) Letter of Concern on Eastern Slopes Mining
• Letter from Kathleen and John Hancock

d) Request for Support for Small, Rural Businesses
• Letter from Ponoka Town Council

e) Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission Funding Formula
• Letter from Town of Pincher Creek

f) Survey on a Draft Pan-Canadian Rural Crime Strategic Framework
• Reeve Request to Complete

g) Pincher Creek Rodeo Parade – Request to Participate Saturday, August 21, 2021
• Official ask is coming, but due to meeting schedule, want to ensure Council is aware

2. For Information

a) Letter from STARS
• Thank you for donation

b) Letter from Minister of Transportation Ric McIver
• Confirmation of Strategic Transportation Infrastructure Program (STIP)

c) Letter from Minister of Environment Jonathan Wilkinson
• Response to our letter concerning the protection of Rock Mountains easrtern slopes and

watersheds
d) Introduction of proposed Alberta Trails Act

• Email from Director Land and Environmental Planning, Alberta Environment and Parks
e) City of Mississauga Resolution

• Changes to Canada Day celebration
f) Letter of Support RCMP

• Town of Fairview
• County of Forty Mile No. 8
• Village of Standard
• Lac La Biche County
• Turner Valley
• Village of Holden
• Village of Rockyford
• Town of Viking
• Town of Thorsby
• Town of Beaverlodge
• Cypress County

g) Action on Smoking and Health – Update
• Update on New Provincial Vaping Regulations

I. NEW BUSINESS

J. CLOSED MEETING SESSION

a) Indian Farm Creek Stabilization Request for Funding – FOIP Sec 17
b) Closed Road Purchase Request – FOIP Sec 17
c) Road Closure for Lease Request – FOIP Sec 17

K. ADJOURNMENT



MINUTES 
COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEETING 

MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 
Tuesday, June 22, 2021 9:00 am 

Via GoToMeeting 

Present: Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Terry Yagos, Quentin 
Stevick and Bev Everts. 

Staff: CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, 
Director of Finance Meghan Dobie and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order, the time being 9:00am. 

1. Approval of Agenda

Councillor Bev Everts 

Moved that the agenda for June 22, 2021 be approved as presented. 

Carried 

2. Update from Coal Policy Committee

Council and administration discussed the potential meeting with the Coal Policy Committee in July, as 
well as the request to Council for support on proposed letter on Alberta coal restriction policy. Council 
will defer motions to the afternoon session for approval. 

3. Closed Session

Councillor Quentin Stevick  

Moved that Council move in to closed session to discuss the following, the time being 9:38 am: 

a) Planning Process Discussion – FOIP Sec 19
b) Actuals vs Budget in Public Works – FOIP Sec 17
c) Pincher Creek Emergency Services Mediation Update – FOIP Sec 17
d) Rural Health Care Information – FOIP Sec 17

Councillor Terry Yagos 

Moved that Council open the Council meeting to the public, the time being 11:15 am. 

4. Adjournment

Councillor Quentin Stevick 

Moved that the Committee Meeting adjourn, the time being 11:16 am. 

C1



MINUTES  9437 
MUNICIPAL DISTRICT OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING  
JUNE 22, 2021 

The Regular Meeting of Council of the Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 was held on Tuesday, June 8, 
2021, at 1:00 pm, via GoToMeeting. 

PRESENT Reeve Brian Hammond, Deputy Reeve Rick Lemire, Councillors Terry Yagos, Quentin Stevick 
and Bev Everts. 

STAFF CAO Troy MacCulloch, Director of Development and Community Services Roland Milligan, 
Director of Finance Meghan Dobie, and Executive Assistant Jessica McClelland. 

Reeve Brian Hammond called the meeting to order the time being 1:00 pm. 

A. ADOPTION OF AGENDA

Councillor Quentin Stevick    21/270

Moved that the Council Agenda for June 22, 2021 be amended to include:
o Correspondence – Action

 c) Heritage Acres Invitation
 d) RMA Vaccination Information and Mobile Vaccination Units

o New Business
 a) High River’s Letter on Proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy
 b) Budget Repurposing – Public Works

And that the agenda be approved as amended. 

Carried 
B. DELEGATIONS

C. MINUTES

1. Committee Meeting Minutes

Councillor Bev Everts    21/271

Moved that the Minutes of the Committee Meeting on June 8, 2021 be approved as presented.

Carried 
2. Council Meeting Minutes

Councillor Terry Yagos   21/272

Moved that the Minutes of the Council Meeting on June 8, 2021 be approved as presented.

Carried 

D. BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

a) Lee Lake Paddling Center

Chuck Lee, the person spearheading the Lee Lake Paddling Center, advised that they are no 
longer pursuing the project.  

E. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

F. COMMITTEE REPORTS / DIVISIONAL CONCERNS

1. Councillor Quentin Stevick – Division 1
a) Pincher Creek Regional Library

2. Councillor Rick Lemire – Division 2
3. Councillor Bev Everts– Division 3

a) Castle Lift Line Magazine

C2



9438 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 22, 2021 

b) FCSS
4. Reeve Brian Hammond - Division 4

a) Crowsnest Pincher Creek Landfill
5. Councillor Terry Yagos – Division 5

a) Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission
b) ASB

Councillor Rick Lemire    21/273 

Moved to accept the Committee Reports and information. 

Carried 

Public Works Superintendent Eric Blanchard attended the meeting at this time to discuss the call logs. 

G. ADMINISTRATION REPORTS

1. Operations

a) Operations Call Log

Councillor Terry Yagos 21/274 

Moved that Council receive the Operations report, which includes the call log, for the period 
June 8, 2021 to June 22, 2021 is received as information.  

Carried 

b) 2021 Capital Project – Bruder Hill

Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/275 

Moved that Council approve an increase in funds for the Bruder Hill capital project, in the 
amount of $60,000, for a total of $530,000, with the said funds coming from the Municipal 
Sustainability Initiative Grant. 

Carried 

c) Water and Sewer Connections – To and On Private Property

Councillor Terry Yagos 21/276 

Moved that Council approve the $14,720 capital project for costs incurred up to the property 
line, and for the project to be funded from the Water and Wastewater Infrastructure Reserve (6-
12-0-758-6740).

Carried 

2. Finance

a) 2020 Grant In Place of Taxes (GIPOT) Write Off

Councillor Bev Everts  21/277 

Moved that Council write-off the 2020 uncollectable grant in place of taxes, in the amount 
of $7,740, with the funds coming from the tax rate stabilization reserve. 

Carried 



9439 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 22, 2021 

b) Property Tax Write Off – SanLing Energy Ltd.

Councillor Terry Yagos 21/278 

Moved that Council write off the property taxes owing form SanLing Energy Ltd. in the amount 
of $802.37 through the Tax Rate Stabilization Reserve (6-12-0-735-6735). 

Carried 

3. Development and Community Services

a) Agricultural Environmental Services Monthly Report

Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/279 

Moved that the Agricultural Environmental Services Monthly Report for May and June 
2021 be received as information. 

Carried 

b) Request for Funding – Fishburn Recreational Park

Councillor Rick Lemire 21/280 

Moved that Council authorize funding to the Fishburn Park Recreation Society for the 
requested maintenance to the existing facility in an amount up to $2500, with said funds 
coming from the Public Reserve Trust; 

AND FURTHER THAT the MD supply one truck and pup load of gravel for the park. 

Carried 

4. Municipal

a) Chief Administrative Officer Report

Councillor Bev Everts  21/281 

Moved that Council receive for information, the Chief Administrative Officer’s report for the 
period of June 8, 2021 to June 22, 2021. 

Carried 

b) Council Summer Meeting Schedule

Councillor Quentin Stevick 21/282 

Moved that the regularly scheduled Council Committee Meetings and Council Meetings of July 
27 and August 10, 2021, be cancelled; 

AND THAT the Agricultural Service Board meeting scheduled for August 4, 2021, be 
cancelled; 

AND THAT the Subdivision Authority and Municipal Planning Commission meetings 
scheduled for August 3, 2021, be cancelled; 

AND FURTHER THAT if there is an emergent need to have a meeting during this time that an 
appropriate date and time be set. 

Carried 



9440 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 22, 2021 

H. CORRESPONDENCE

1. For Action

a) Request for Letter of Support - Pincher Creek and District Food Center

Councillor Bev Everts  21/283 

Moved that a letter of support be written for the Pincher Creek and District Food Center in their 
application for the Canada Healthy Communities Initiative. 

Carried 

b) RMA Member Visit

Council discussed RMA’s invitation to meeting in person on August 23, 2021 from 11 to 2, and directed 
Administration to confirm the meeting.  

c) Heritage Acres Request

Councillor Rick Lemire 21/284 

Moved that the Reeve be authorized to attend the Grand Opening of Heritage Acres new working 
Blacksmith Shop on Saturday July 10, 2021 at 1pm. 

Carried 

d) Vaccination Information and Mobile Vaccination Units – RMA

Councillor Bev Everts  21/285 

Moved in an effort to support RMA that Administration be directed to share the Vaccination 
Information and Mobile Vaccination Units, the 19 to Zero program, on our social media. 

Carried 

2. For Information

Councillor Rick Lemire   21/286

Moved that the following be received as information:
a) Letter of Support RCMP

• Village of Milo
• Village of Caroline
• Red Deer County
• Village of Lougheed
• Town of Nanton
• City of Fort Saskatchewan

b) Oldman River Water Allocation Order
• Letter from MLA Roger Reid

c) Chinook Arch System Agreement
• Information for Council

d) Proposed Clem Geo-Energy Wind Farm West of Pincher Creek
• Letter from Kathleen M Day

e) SASCI Fund Development Specialist
• RFP
• Advertisement

f) Livingstone Ski Academy
• Thank you Letter

g) Grant Specialist Report
• May 2021

h) Alberta Health Letter
• Letter from Minister of Health, Tyler Shandro



9441 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 22, 2021 

i) STARS
• Letter of Thanks
j) Notice of AGM
• SASCI Invitation

Carried 

I. NEW BUSINESS

a) High River’s Letter on Proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy

Councillor Bev Everts 21/287 

Moved that the MD of Pincher Creek endorse the rationale in the letter from High River, mainly the 
three principles of the Alberta Coal Restriction Policy as follows: 

1. The inherent value of the Eastern Slopes only exists with the landscape remaining intact.

2. The headwaters and landscapes of the Eastern Slopes are critical to the future of our province.
Our communities, agriculture production, food production, tourism and recreation all rely on
these landscapes existing and their watersheds producing clean water. Water is a limited
resource that we all require to exist. The Town is strongly opposed to any activity that increases
the likelihood of water contamination. Once a waterway has been contaminated by coal mining,
this action cannot be reversed. Our future generations depend on us protecting this resource.

3. The negative impacts on the environment, human health, animal health and existing
economies far outweigh the new jobs, taxes, royalties or economics that may be generated as a
result of coal development in this area.

Carried 

Councillor Bev Everts  21/288 

Moved that the MD residents that requested the MD support High Rivers Letter be advised of 
the MD’s position on the Alberta Coal Restriction Policy, and our endorsement of the rationale. 

Carried 

b) Budget Repurposing

Councillor Terry Yagos 21/289 

Moved that Council repurpose funds marked for gravel royalties, crushing and reclamation, in 
the amount $1,025,000;  
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $75,000 to gravel pit reclamation (2-32-0-219-2260); 
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $25,000 to additional culverts (2-32-0-530-2530);  
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $10,000 IT expenses (2-12-0-511-2511); 
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $20,000 to Water Services (2-45-0-260-2260);  
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $350,000 for capital work for the transfer station (2-
43-0-759-2759);
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $235,000 for capital work for the standpipes (2-45-0-
759-2759);
AND FURTHER THAT Council allocate $310,000 to transfer to the road reserve (2-32-0-764-
2764);
AND FURTHER THAT Council request Administration to bring forward final plans and
engineered estimates on the new bulk water and transfer station prior to proceeding.

Carried 

J. CLOSED SESSION

Councillor Bev Everts     21/290

Moved that Council move in to closed session to discuss the following, the time being 3:00 pm:



9442 
Minutes  
Regular Council Meeting 
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9 
June 22, 2021 

a) Agreement for Lease of Equipment and Service – FOIP Sec 17

Carried 

Councillor Rick Lemire    21/291 

Moved that Council open the Council meeting to the public, the time being 3:17 pm. 

Carried 

a) Agreement for Lease of Equipment and Service

Councillor Rick Lemire 21/292 

Moved that the MD of Pincher Creek sign the Agreement for Lease of Equipment and Service in 
conjunction with the Town of Pincher Creek and the Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association. 

Carried 

K. ADJOURNMENT

Councillor Terry Yagos    21/293

Moved that Council adjourn the meeting, the time being 3:19 pm.

Carried 

REEVE 

CHIEF ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER 



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes May 19, 2021

THE CROWSNEST/PINCHER CREEK LANDFILL ASSOCIATION

MINUTES

May 19, 2021

The regular meeting of The Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association was held at 9:30 am

Wednesday May 19, 2021 it was a Virtual Zoom Meeting

Present: Brian Hammond, Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9

Dean Ward, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Doreen Glavin, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Dave Filipuzzi, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Brian McGillivray, Town of Pincher Creek

Mary Kittlaus, Village of Cowley

Emile Saindon, Landfill Manager

Dean Bennett, Landfill Manager in Training

Jean Waidner, Landfill Office Supervisor

AGENDA

Brian Hammond

Moved the agenda be adopted with additions 5 d, Update on the Incinerator Appeal.

6 e, Closed in camera session for the Director’s only. Carried. 05.19.21-1388

MINUTES

Brian McGillivray

Moved the minutes of April 21, 2021 be adopted as circulated. Carried. 05.19.21-1389

MANAGER’S REPORT

1. The Landfill Manager in training purchase 4 used recycle bins from a local recycling company,
Saving the Landfill $40,000. There are 3 more bins on order. We should be ready to go
For July.

2. Opening up to smaller groups for Paper Picking has helped the Landfill control refuge paper
Immensely. The neighboring fields are looking good again.

3. The MSW has been consistent and busy for this time of year.
4. The Industrial cell has had a few little jobs, there has been some quotes given

on some bigger jobs.

5. Met with a company last week that thinks they will be able to shred the windmill blades.
If he is successful we will be able to take them again and at this time no other landfills are.
So it could be lucrative for us.

Dave Filipuzzi

Moved that the Manager’s report be accepted as information. Carried. 05.19.21-1390

F4a



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes May 19, 2021

FINANCIAL REPORT

The Income Statement and Balance sheet to May 13, 2021 was reviewed. Administration
went over the reports and answered all the financial questions. A question was asked on
the vacation payable in the current liabilities on the balance sheet. Admin explained it but
said she would ask MNP for a more detailed explanation and send a report to the Director’s.
Management will look into the current policy in our Employee Handbook/Contract and make
the recommended changes requested by the Director’s.
Brian McGillivray

Moved the financial statements be accepted as information and Management/Administration
to research this matter further and report back to the Director’s Carried. 05.19.21-1391

RECYCLING UPDATES (DISCUSS AB RECYCLING ELECTRONIC PILOT PROGRAM)
We are on track to start July 1, 2021 with our recycling program in both the Pincher Creek
and Crowsnest Pass. Locations of the bins have been decided. Brian McGillivray inquired about

the AB Recycling Electronic Pilot Program. It was explained on how the program works and
that we have been collecting small electronics for this program since last October.
Dave Filipuzzi

Moved the recycling update be accepted as information. Carried. 05.19.21-1392

REVIEW OF OUR DONATION POLICY

The Chairman of the Landfill Board would like to review our current donation policy, he asked
the Director’s their opinions to possibly change the policy to included Family and community
events again. Brian McGillivray offered to rewrite the policy and bring it back to the next board
meeting.

Brian Hammond

Moved the updated Donation Policy be reviewed at our next board meeting. Carried. 05.19.21-1393

REVIEW OF OUR SCHOLARSHIP POLICY

Management of Landfill discussed their concerns with the limitations of our Environmental
Science & Technology Scholarship. They would like to see our scholarship be opened up more
to help a wider variety of students. The Directors accepted Administration request to rewrite
this policy and bring it back to our next meeting.
Brian McGillivray

Moved that Administration rewrite our Scholarship Policy and bring t back to the next board
meeting for possible approval. Carried. 05.19.21-1394



CNPC Landfifl Board Minutes May 19, 2021

UPDATE ON THE LANDFILL INCINERATOR APPEAL

The Landfill Manager explained that a final decision was made from the Environmental Appeals
board, they are allowing the Landfill to keep the proposed incinerator in the Landfill approval.
So that if In the future the Landfill Board of Director’s change their minds and want to pursue
operating an incinerator all the research will not have to be collected again.
A copy of the final appeal approval will be sent to each Director for information.
Brian Hammond

Moved this incinerator update be accepted as information. Carried. 05.19.21-1395

DONATION REQUEST FROM CNP MINOR SOCCER

A donation request was made from The CNP Minor Soccer for operating funds this year.
The Board of Director’s ask administration to respond and tell the club we will revisit this
request next month, they would like to see if covid restrictions will be lifted before supporting
future skill building events, tournaments etc.

DONATION REQUEST FROM THE CROWSNEST PASS LITERACY FOUNDATION
A donation request from the Crowsnest Pass Literacy Foundation for their 1 Book, S School
program to support Family Literacy.

Brian McGillivray

Moved that $500.00 be donated to the Foundation for their Family Literacy Program.

Carried. 05.19.21-1396

DONATION REQUEST FROM THE CNP BRIGHTER FUTURES PROGRAM FOR THEIR THINKING
OUTSIDE THE BOOK PROGRAM

A donation request from the Crowsnest Pass Brighter Futures for their Thinking outside the
book StoryWalk campaign. To promote community reading.
Brian Hammond

Moved that $1000.00 be donated to their Thinking outside the book StoryWalk campaign.

Carried. 05.19.21-1397

REQUEST BY LANDFILL MANAGER IN TRAINING TO MOVE INTO A CLOSED SESSION
Brian Hammond moved to go into a closed session at 10:26 am Carried. 05,19.21-1398

Brian McGillivray moved to come out of this closed session 10:50 Carried. 05.19.21-1399



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes May 19, 2021

REQUEST BY DIRECTORS TO MOVE INTO A CLOSED SESSION

Brian McGillivray moved to go into a closed session at 11:00 am Carried. 05.19.21-1400

Brian Hammond moved to come out of this closed session 11:01 Carried. 05.19.21-1401

NEXT MEETING DATES

June 16, 2021 October 20, 2021
July 21, 2021 November 17, 2021
August 18, 2021 December 15, 2021
September 15, 2021

ADJOURNMENT

Mary Kittlaus

Moved the meeting adjourn at 11:02 am Carried. 05.19.21-1402

QAIRMAN A INISTRATION



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes April 21, 2021

THE CROWSNEST/PINCHER CREEK LANDFILL ASSOCIATION

MINUTES

April 21, 2021

The regular meeting of The Crowsnest/Pincher Creek Landfill Association was held at 9:37 am
Wednesday April 21, 2021 it was a Virtual Zoom Meeting

Present: Brian Hammond, Municipal District of Pincher Creek #9
Dean Ward, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass

Doreen Glavin, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass
Dave Filipuzzi, Municipality of Crowsnest Pass
Brian McGillivray, Town of Pincher Creek
Emile Saindon, Landfill Manager

Dean Bennett, Landfill Manager in Training

Jean Waldner, Landfill Office Supervisor

AGENDA

Brian McGillivray

Moved the agenda be adopted with additions 6 b, Donation policy review. 6 c, Closed in
camera session for the Director’s only. Carried. 04.21.21-1381

MINUTES

Brian McGillivray

Moved the minutes of March 24,2021 be adopted as circulated. Carried. 04.21 21-1382

MANAGER’S REPORT

1. Recycling is moving forward, we met with both the MD and Town of Pincher Creek
representatives to go over details regarding the temporary site at the Pincher Creek CO-OP
parking lot. We also talked to the CNP COA and have the recycling bin location organized.
We’ve ordered 7 new bin’s, the lead time looks to be about 4 weeks.

2. Management has commissioned the local high schools to come and paint our recycling
machinery, and tour our facility. We hope by educating our youth they can help us promote
recycling in our area. Also help them understand the Landfills dedication and commitment
towards improve recycling in all our regions keeping our communities clean and beautiful.

3. The MSW has been busy.

4. Industrial cell has been slow, but that is expected this time of year.
5. Employee evaluations are halfway completed.
6. Working with Civil Tracker, he is the owner of the drone flying package we are using to

survey the Landfill. We are looking forward to learning this new technology to improve
our surveying abilities to help reduce costs

Brian McGillivray

Moved that the Manager’s report be accepted as information. Carried. 04.21,21.1383



CNPC Landfill Board Minutes April 21, 2021

FINANCIAL REPORT

The Income Statement and Balance sheet to April 15th, was reviewed. Administration
went over the reports and answered all the financial questions. A financial update on the CPR
Potash spill was discussed.

Brian Hammond

Moved the financial statements be accepted as information Carried. 04.21.21-1384

DONATION REQUEST FROM CNP MINOR SOCCER

A donation request was made from The CNP Minor Soccer for operating funds this year.
The Board of Director’s ask administration to respond and tell the club we will revisit this
request next month, they would like to see if covid restrictions will be lifted before supporting
future skill building events, tournaments etc.

REVIEW OF OUR DONATION POLICY

The Chairman of the Landfill Board would like to review our Donation Policy.
The board agreed to review this policy and administration was requested to forward our
current policy to all board members for review next meeting.
Dave Filipuzzi

Moved to have this topic scheduled on our board meeting May 19, 2021. Carried. 04.21.21-1384

REQUEST BY DIRECTORS TO MOVE INTO A CLOSED SESSION
Dave Filipuzzi moved to go into a closed session at 9:54 am
Brian McGillivray moved to come out of this closed session 10:02

Carried. 04.21.21-1385

Carried. 04.21,21-1386

NEXT MEETING DATES

May 19, 2021
June 16, 2021
July 21, 2021
August 18, 2021

September 15, 2021
October 20, 2021
November 17, 2021
December 15, 2021

ADJ 0 U RN ME NT

Doreen Glavin

Moved the meeting adjourn at 10:03 am

72jJ
CHAI$AN

Carried. 04.21.21-1387

LD‘u-
A NISTRATION



M.D. OF PINCHER CREEK NO. 9 

OPERATIONS REPORT 

Current Public Works Activity 

• Road Maintenance - Roads are being graded in all Divisions. Public Works has five (5) 
graders out on the roads doing maintenance and getting ready for the gravel and dust control 
Program. 

• Dust control Program to start June 21th 2021 in division 1. Division 1 and 2 are completed. 
Crew are making their ways through division 3 and 4 as areas are ready to be sprayed. 

• Gravel program started May 25 , 2021 in Division lat Pine Creek Pit. Division 1, 2 and 3 are 
now comP,leted. The crew is now loading from the 510 it along Hwy 510 in Division 4. 
Expected com letion date, July 15, 2021. 

• 2 Cattle Guards replacement schedule July 12-15, 2021 on Wildcat Ranch road off Hwy 22. 
• aintenance work on Maycroft to start July 14 with the hel of Riviere's construction for 

approximately 10 days. 
• prainage improvement and road re2air to take 2lace at the end of July north of the hall in 

Willow Valley. 
• oadside Mowing expected to begin Monday July 19, 2021 in Division 2 and 3. 
• 2 - 12' cattle guard on Carbondale road has been re lace with one 18' and one 20' cattle 

guard June 28 and 29, 2-21 
• ine painting project at the Administration building and on all MD Highways has been 

com leted June 18, 2021 by Marshall Line 2000LTD 
• MRF Lidar collection program still ongoing. Training took place in Calgary June 01 , 2021 

and field data collection has started June 07, 2021. xpected completion July 8, 2021 
• aintenance work to take place on the Old Ai ort Road has been com leted. Road ex ected 

to be re-graveled July 12-15 2021 
• Hard pavement repair on Hwy 3A (Landfill and Airport) and on Tower road to be completed 

by McNally Contracting Mid July. 
• Heavy Maintenance crew to start filing pothole and overlay repair on cold mix surface at 

several location throughout the MD July 12, 2021. 
• Bridge Deck and Guard rail cleaning has started May 27, 2021 and will be ongoing for most 

of the season. 
• Working on call log items daily. 

Capital Projects Update - Bridges 

• Bridge File 75009 - Wild Cat Ranch 
- Tender awarded to NL Smith and Sons at $257,977.50 (Budget $580,000) 

2nd East Butte Contracting Ltd 
3rd Don Boyce Contracting Ltd 

- Land negotiations are ongoing, agreement on the exchange of land has been reached, 
documents are being prepared. 
- Construction set for July - Sept 15 

DATE: July 06, 2021 Page 1 of 6 

G1a



Once date is determined with contractor - media and resident notifications will go out 
The contractor is preparing their Eco and Traffic accommodation plans for 
approval 

• Bridge File 75377 -Local Road over Screwdriver Creek 
- Tender awarded Ossa Terra Ltd at $266,704.29 (Budget $370,000.00) 

2nd Don Boyce Contracting Ltd 
3rd East Butte Contracting Ltd 

- Construction set for Aug 15 - Sept 01 (fish window) Access to private land adjacent to 
the bridge has been negotiated. 

Once date is determined with contractor - media and resident notifications will go out 
o All environment and DFO permits secured. 

The contractor is preparing their Eco and Traffic accommodation plans for 
approval 

• Bridge File 74119- Pony Truss Bridge 
- Tender awarded JA Building Systems at $163,107.50 (Budget $170,500.00) 

2nd Nitro Construction 
3rd Volker Stevin 

• Bridge File 2224 - Lank Bridge 
- Tender awarded - JA Building Systems at $258,604.25 (Budget $198,000.00) 

2nd Nitro Construction 
3rd Volker Stevin 

Additional funds req'd & approved by Council on Apr 13, 2021 
Apr 13 Council approved additional funds for BF2224 to meet the 
low bid required for work to be completed. 

- Construction was set for completion by September 31 for both projects until the 
contractor's supplier was unable to supply wood for the project. Once the contractor has a 
supplier lined up a new construction date will be determined. Wood has been secured for 
the project to continue as initially tendered 

Once a new date is determined with contractor - media and resident notifications will 
go out 

The contractors Eco and Traffic accommodation plans have been 
submitted for approval and are being reviewed and start u meeting was 

eld at MD office on June 25 . 

• Bridge File 75265 - Local Road over Heath Creek 
- Tender awarded for engineering in 2021 

Roseke Engineering at $52,162.00 (Budget $53,000.00) 
- Have requested updated proposed construction costs to be ready for September for 2022 
budget discussions 

-the contractor has indicated that work is underway. 
- Construction set to commence in 2022 

DATE: July 06, 2021 Page 2 of6 



• Bridge File 7743 - Local Road over Gladstone Creek 
- Tender awarded for engineering in 2021 

Roseke Engineering at $45,015.00 (Budget $46,000.00) 
- Have requested updated proposed construction costs to be ready for September for 2022 
budget discussions 

-the contractor has indicated that work is underway. 
- Construction set to commence in 2022 

• Bridge File 2488 - Fisher Bridge 
- Engineering to be completed in 2021 due to change in rating since first inspected 
- Construction/replacement/removal options to be presented to Council for action in 2022 
- After April 27th meeting with Council additional options have been sought and we are 
currently sourcing material, engineering and build cost options for Council. Recycling a 
longer used bridge from Alberta Transportation has been ruled out. A forestry style 
bridge with 50 + years oflife expectancy could be installed for an estimated $600,000. 
- Proposals for a longer term, lower cost option are being received on Friday June 4, 
2021. 
- SL Engineering has been retained to do design engineering for the project. A project 
start-up meeting was held on June 18, 2021 and the Geo-Technical work has been 
com leted. 

Roads 

• Lundbreck- ist, 2nd, & 3rd Street- Construction Summer 2021 
-Design was completed and approved April 29, 2021 
- Tender for construction in 2021 has been awarded to Silver Ridge construction LTD at 
$452,954.76 + ISL Engineering at $23,750.00 for a total of $476,704.76 (Budget 
$605,000.00) 
- Silver Ridge Construction started work July 5, 2021. Ex ected com letion date, July 25, 
2021. 
- otification letter has been sent and hand delivered to affected resident by the 
contractor. Notification has also been osted on social media and MD Website. 

• Bruder Hill - Construction Summer 2021 
- Wood Engineering provided Final design April 29, 2021. 
- Pre Tender meeting has been held on site Thursday May 27, 2021 
- Tender opening has been completed June 7, 2021. Lowest qualifying Tender is Dennis 
Dirtworks LTD at $427,617.60 
- Council approved recommendation to increase budget to $530,000 June 22, 2021 
- ~ ward Letter has been sent to Dennis Dirtworks Ltd June 23, 2021 
- Waiting on final contract to be sign to finalize mobilization and start date. 
- Estimated project completion date Sept 15, 2021 
- Once date is determined with contractor - media and resident notifications will go out. 

DATE: July 06, 2021 Page 3 of 6 



• Gladstone Road- Construction Summer 2021 (August - Se tember 
- The proposed road construction on the road is to happen in the summer of 2021. 
Drainage improvement on east ditch. Road surface to be ripped, material will be windrow 
to the side, Rock picker to remove rock from windrow, lay material back, compact with 
grid and smooth drum, Re-gravel and apply MG 30 as a stabilizer. 
Once dates are determined - media and resident notifications will go out 

• Cabin Hill Road - Engineering only for 2021 
- Wood Engineering to design the Local Road - Design option have been reviewed. 
- I approved SC#2 to include post construction legal survey. Topographic survey was 
completed April 8-9 and Geotechnical drilling was completed A ril 15-16 

etailed design and C-estimate has been received June 23 rd 2021. 

• Hucik Hill Road - Construction Summer of 2021 (July 12 - July 30) 
The work is located at Range Road 1-4 and would be to excavate, add a French drain, 
Ditch grading and stabilize the slope on the east side of the road. Though Country 
Excavation (Don Boyce) has been hired to assist with the work and equipment combine 
with the MD Equipment. Waiting on water to stop coming out of the hill to set a start 
date. 
Once date is determined - media and resident notifications will go out 

Transfer Station 

- Joint meeting planned for May 28th with Town Council and Admin. 
- MPE has been hired to complete drawings for submission to Min of Environment. 

Engineered drawings and roject costs are to be presented to Council on July 13th
. 

Large Capital and other Water Projects 

• Lundbreck Lagoon Aerated System 
- Tender awarded - Riteline Electric at $38,229.81 (Budget $195,000.00) 

2nd Nitro Construction 
3rd Tregenna Investments 

- Construction complete - Commissioning was May 27th. - Operational 

• Beaver Mines Water Distribution, Collection System. 
- The MD has requested a budget update from our consultants regarding possible 
adjustments due to rising material costs. hese are coming in and will be u dated for 
Budget discussions. 
- Tender packages are ready for the Waste system and are out for the Distribution and 
Collection System. Tender closes July 15th with a tentative extension til the 20th

. 

- Construction start date is being reviewed. Distribution and Collection may be able to 
start late Summer ' 21 , or early Fall based on the successful contractor availability and 
the avai lability of SUJJQlies. 

DATE: July 06, 2021 Page 4 of 6 



• Beaver Mines Waste Facility/System 
- The MD has requested a budget update from our consultants regarding possible 
adjustments due to rising material costs. hese are coming in and will be u dated for 
Budget discussions. 
- Tender packages are ready for the Waste Facility/System. 
- Waste System will not started be until 2022 at the earliest to allow for the AEP 
A roval Process to run its course. 

• Beaver Mines Forcemain & Lift Station 
- The tender packages are ready 
- Construction start date is being reviewed. 

Draft Approval Granted on May 12th. This was followed by numerous meetings with both 
engineering firms and AEP to clarify the language and the terms to ensure we are on the same 
page when Final Approval is granted. Revised terms and conditions was submitted to AEP on 
May 28 and this will be followed up with another meeting with AEP prior to Final being granted 
if any terms or conditions require further dialogue. With our revisions in and being reviewed 
we are currently awaiting the next steps from AEP. AEP has already asked for a few little things 
during the process but no full sit down meeting as of yet. Very fluid communication is being 
enjoyed at this time. 

In essence, the system and project are approved, we are just agreeing to the terms upon which 
we will be measured going forward so there are no surprises after Approval is granted. Two 
additional submissions have taken place, complete with all of the drawings for the distribution 
and collection have now been submitted. 

25 June, 2021 - Draft Approval returned to AEP with signed LOU (Letter of Understanding) 
which is the legal document that binds us to the conditions of the a roval. 

3 July, 2021 - Updated Project Forecast presented to Council. Project currently stands at 380k 
over previous due to protracted AEP Approval, design changes to further address SOC's, legal 
and commodity cost increases. (3.6% increase in the budge!). 

• Lead Management Plan - Lundbreck 
- Randy is working with AEP to set up sample collection, resident and media engagement 
- Lead Mgmt plans are now a requirement of AEP for drinking water. 
- letters were mailed out with invoices on May 17. Only 2 letters has been received so far. 

Additional social media requests are being made and ossible door knocker cam aign. 
- June 24th email request sent to Lundbreck Citizens to circulate to its members as well as 
members of the Patton Park Society and the Gardening Club. 

• Dam Study 
- RFP for Dam Safety Review Closed at 1400, April 20, 2021 
- The MD received seven (7) proposals prior to the deadline. We will be putting a three 
member Project Evaluation Board together to review the proposals. Panel has made their 
selection and are beginning the work. 
- Tender awarded to SNC Lavalin inc. at $54,027 (Budget $90,000) 

2nd WSP Canada Inc. 
yd Golder Associates Ltd 

DATE: July 06, 2021 Page 5 of 6 



Start-up Meeting with SNC was June 11 h_ 

Site visit and inspection of all 5 PRF A dams on Monday June 14. 

Two engineers with SNC-Lavalin Inc. , Dam Safety Operation and Infrastructure officer from 

AEP, MD's Agriculture Fieldman, Safety Coordinator and myself. 

Waiting for preliminary comments from engineers. Will be bringing final report to Council 

when received in September for direction on the future of the dams and budget considerations for 

2022. 

• Standpipes (Cowley, PC and new site in BM) 
- Prices are coming in for Cowley and Pincher location and negotiations are taking place 

for the land to develop a new site near the Hamlet of Beaver Mines. Planning to all have the two 
sites converted to card readers, instead of coin operated and the new site operational by mid to end 
of Sept. 
- MPE hired to rovide engineered drawings and cost estimates for resentation to Council on 

July 13th
• 

lWith the costs now determined, it is Admin's proposal that the PC Standpipe gets relocated and 
upgraded this year and the Cowley Standpipe gets upgraded. Due to the costs and the limited 
funds repurposed from Ops being used for the other rojects, that the new location in BM be art 
of the 2022 Budget and Ca italized. 

Operational Notes: 

Coal Policy Committee Engagement Session is slated for July 12h. 

Recommendation: 

That the Operations report for the period June 23 , 2021 to July 13, 2021 is received as 
information. 

Prepared by: Eric/Roland/Troy 

Submitted to: Council 

DATE: July 06, 2021 

Date: July 06, 2021 

Date: July 13, 2021 

Page 6 of 6 



2021-07-07

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

3000 Division 2 SE07 T5 R28 W4 - Feels the south side of bridge needs rip wrap put in 
before flooding season so creek doesn’t turn direction 

Eric /Bob M - October 30, 2020
Need to install 30 CM of Rip Rap on the West side of 
the South Abutment. Will be completed outside the 

RAP (Aug 16-31)
Aug 16-31 2021

3002 Division 1 NE26 T4 R30 W4 #3015 TWP4-5 No maintenance on snow fence for years, Bison in field Bison no 
longer there,RQ maintenance RR30-1

Tony N To Be completed March 15, 2021 Roger asked us to wait later this summer has the 
field stay wet. 

June-July

3003 Division 3 SE25 T5 R1 W5 RR1-0 Wanting gravel & grading on TWP1-0 & RR5-4 Shawn Completed March 16, 2021 Assessed and grader not able to get in as too  
muddy 

June

3004 Division 4 WC Ranches by  Glider Strip To put in another approach & possible culvert Jonathan - March 31, 2021 will be completed when available, not a priority -

3006 Division 1 NE35 T5 R29 W4 - Water is running under culvert Road to field and 
would like approach widened & culvert longer 

Jonathan - April 26, 2021 been assess, waiting for one call. -

3008 Division 5 NE12 T7 R3 W5 
1st approach on left
going in to Rainbow 

acres
Would like gravel on their approach/Red Bridge sign broken Eric Completed May 6, 2021 &30 June Bob repaired sign at bridge June 28, 2021

3009 Division 1 NE36 T4 R29 W4 3/4 mile west Signs missing Gap road south of TWPline road RR Eric Completed May 6, 2021 Sign missing on south side of the road. One call will 
be put in place

June 24, 2021

3010 Division 3 SE15 T6 R2 W5 - Premanent snow fence needs repair Eric - May 19, 2021 On the Permanent snow fence list, Tony N to assess. -

3015 Division 4 SE13 T7 R29 W4 RR2-9
by goat farm 

Bush needs to be taken out of ditch North to Brocket Jonathan - May 31, 2021 will be assessed, cant mulch now due to nesting -

3018 Lundbreck South going to the 
dump 

- Snow fence has boards off & on the ground with nails sticking up  
dangerous for livestock 

Jonathan Completed May 31, 2021 To be completed June 22, 2021

3020 Division 1 St Henrys - Brush need cutting / Maintenance Jonathan - June 3, 2021 talk to him, told him we would do it in the winter -

3022 Division 4 NE24 T8 R1 W5 - Big pothole in road by cross roads and east Jonathan June 4, 2021 Cold mix, will be added to the patching list -

3026 Division 4 - -  GRAVEL 60 yrds (20Yrds spread on driveway/40 stockpile) Gravel Crew Completed June 8, 2021 Will get Jim Fitzpatrick to haul it for him July 6, 2021

3027 Division 1 SW19 T4 R29 W4 - Would like Gravel on his approach Jonathan - June 9, 2021 - -

3030 Division 5 - - Re gravel for driveway Jonathan Completed June 10, 2021 Jon talk to him and his wife, Gave him price for 
gravel and dust Control

June 17, 2021

3034 Division 3 Beaver Mines - Pickle Ball Court needs lines re-painted Eric Completed June 14, 2021 - June 30, 2021

3036 Division 5 NW15 T5 R30 W4 RR30-3 Culvert concerns Jonathan - June 14, 2021 Culvert will need cleaning and rip rap, would be 
done in August

-

3038 Division 2 - - Gravel on road, he would like it graded Kent Completed June 16, 2021 - June 17, 2021

3039 Division 3 Gladstone Road - Upset with the condition of Gladstone Road.  Big rock on shoulders Jonathan Completed June 17, 2021 Jon talk to him, Operator went and clean this up the 
next day 

June 18, 2021

3040 Division 2 SW10 T6 R29 W4 #6101 RR29-3 Gravel crew should be using water trucks, very dusty Jonathan Completed June 17, 2021 water truck already on the crew June 17, 2021

3041 - - - Question, should the gravel trucks not use tarps to cover load Jonathan Completed June 17, 2921 not a Bylaw in the MD June 17, 2021

3042 Division 4 NE18 T8 R28 W4 #8301 HWY785 RQ Driveway Shawn Completed June 17, 2021 - June 17, 2021



2021-07-07

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

3043 Division 3 SE26 T5 R2 W5 5414 Wants to remove trees from ditch N.End of road past gas line Jonathan - June 18, 2021 Tony N. will assess July 06, 2021 -

3044 Division 4 SE28 T8 R29 W4 Requesting roadside grass mowing Mowers - June 21, 2021 would be added to the mowing list -

3045 Division 3 SE15 T5 R1 W5  Christie Mines Rd RQ to have his road graded by the end of chritie Mine Eric - June 21, 2021 Will be added to Glen List when gravel is completed -

3046 Division 4 NW27 T7 R29 W4 #7429 RR29-3 RQ to have driveway graded Shawn Completed June 22, 2021 Unable to do & advised June 23, 2021

3047 - BeaverMines - Branches not picked up re spring cleanu[/Pickle Ball Court lines 
to be repainted, grass needs to be cut 

Eric Completed June 23. 2021 - June 24, 2021

3048 Division 5 SE27 T7 R2 W5 #2219 Driveway grading and Driveway mowing Eric - June 23. 2021 will be added to mowing list -

3049 Lundbreck - - Need barricades for graduation ceremony Eric Completed June 23. 2021 -  June 24, 2021

3050 - Hidden Valley 
Estates  #2

- Snow fence did not get removed Eric Completed June 23, 2021 Snow fence Removed June 24, 2021

3051 - NW13 T6 R1 W5 #1026 Hwy 507 Gravel trucks are too noisey coming from McRae pit on to
Hwy 507 and going too fast not stopping 

Jonathan/Eric Completed Junme 23, 2021 - June 23, 2021

3052 Division 3 SE15 T5 R1 W5  #5204 RR1-0A Neighbor of Tom Liscombe and want his driveway done as well Eric - June 24, 2021 Will be added to Glen List when gravel is completed -

3053 Division 3 Near accidenta Contractor gravel trucks are being very dangerous coming out of
McRae pit on to Hyw 507  too fast and not stopping. 

Jonathan Completed June 24, 2021 June 24, 2021

3054 Division 3 NW35 T5 R1 W5 #1125 TWP6-0 Driveway request for grading Eric/Jonathan - June 23, 2021 - -

3054 Division 4 NW31 T7 R1 W5 - Would like a load of gravel to widen approach Eric/Jonathan - June 28, 2021 - -

3055 Lundbreck SE265 T7 R2 W5 #7411 RR2-1 Does not want trucks in their field sorking on Lagoon manholes Eric Completed June 29, 2021 Re-schedule truck for after hay season June 29,2021

3056 Division 4 NW10 T9 R1 W5 #9127 RR1-3 Snake Trail  wanting gravel for driveway & to call first (Canmore) Brian - June 30, 2021 Incorrect phone number, trying to reach him -

3057 Division 2 NW32 T5 R29 W4 #5511 RR29-5 Has new gravel and would like driveway graded Kent Completed July 5, 2021 - July 6, 2021

3058 Division 2 - - Gratful to  have the extra dust control but is worried the 
high traffic will damage the application 

Eric Completed July 5, 2021 Talk to him the same day, will apply more product 
after hauling season if needed. 

July 6, 2021

3059 Division 4 SE28 T8 R1 W5 - DOES NOT want Dust control on the MD road she built and paid
for in 1995 - road running N/S

Eric Completed July 5, 2021 talk to her July 06 and explained that we will put 
dust control on the hill even if she disagree. 

July 6, 2021

3060 Division 4 Cabin Creek Hill - Does not want big trucks using and wrecking his road Eric /Brian - July 5, 2021 Trying to reach Dan, He was blocking the road when 
gravel crew tried to gravel the road

-

3061 Division 3 NW16 T5 R2 W5 #2329 Concerned as to when the Gladstone road will be worked on Eric Completed July 6, 2021 Told him we will be in Gladstone in a couple week to 
do lots of improvement

July 6, 2021



2021-07-07

DIVISION LOCATION APPROACH NUMBER CONCERN/REQUEST ASSIGNED TO ACTION TAKEN REQUEST DATE FOLLOW UPDATE COMPLETION DATE

Indicates Completed

Indicates  Defered to Spring

indicates On the To Do List  



G2a



2021 Actual 2021 Budget Variance % of Budget 
Remaining Comments

Wages
     Council (66,876)                  (170,800)                             103,924            60.8%
     Administration (629,926)                (1,440,120)                          810,194            56.3%
     AES (113,574)                (299,300)                             185,726            62.1%
     Public Works (1,062,448)             (2,560,830)                          1,498,382         58.5%

Taxes and Requisitions 14,649,293            12,569,040                         2,080,253         -16.6%

Timing - Tax Revenue is recorded in May; however the MD has not 
made requisition payments of $1.46M to ASFF, DIP and PCESC.  
Additionally, the MD is seeing high revenue as result of penalties on 
outstanding taxes ($500k).

Investment Income 9,575                     256,000                              (246,425)          96.3% Investment income for bonds is a year end entry

Council (1,229)                    (95,750)                               94,521              98.7% Favorable due to less travel, training, hotels, etc. as a result of COVID-
19 and subscriptions not yet paid. 

Administration (421,134)                (1,096,660)                          675,526            61.6% Spending is on track at this point. An additional 10k was allocated here 
for cloud conversion and eSend. 

Fire (61,296)                  (61,960)                               664                   1.1% Immaterial - Contribtution made to seach and rescue and transfer to 
reserve. Fire nets to 0 as invoice is billed to rate payer

Emergency Management (8,249)                    (73,860)                               65,611              88.8%
Favorable due to PCREMO being transferred to PCESC. PCREMO full 
budget is shown here. It is shared between the Town (49%) MD (49%) 
and Cowley (2%). 

Bylaw (17,866)                  (157,800)                             139,935            88.7% Favorable due to timing - we have not yet paid the Q2-Q4 province-wide 
police initiative.

Public Works (2,842,383)             (4,758,390)                          1,916,007         40.3% See note (A) below

Lundbreck (6,338)                    (112,600)                             106,262            94.4% Due to the labour allocation from PW done at year end (budget 75k) and 
timing as result of minimal repair and utility costs thus far. 

Airport (22,158)                  (66,900)                               44,742              66.9%

Favorable due to minimal repair and utility costs thus far and the PW 
labour allocation not yet posted (40k), offset slightly by regional airport 
committee contribtutions not yet received and contracted services almost 
fully spent from line painting. This was a coding change and should 
offset it PW.

WasteWater 8,467                     22,800                                (14,333)            62.9% Unfavorable due to timing - service fees and charges still need to be 
billed in Q2-Q4, and timing a result of minimal repair costs to date. 

Waste Management (114,355)                (332,680)                             218,325            65.6% Landfill charges are on track to be within budget. To date, 5 months of 
actuals  recorded here. 

Regional Water (400,793)                (606,060)                             205,267            33.9%

Favorable due to labour allocation from PW (115k), remaining debenture 
payments (50k), and Dam Study (90k) not yet booked, offset slightly by 
Q2-Q4 water billing not yet complete.

An additional 20k was allocated here for generator installation and 
potable water storage tank inspection. 

Cemetery - Town of Pincher Creek -                         (55,140)                               55,140              100.0% 2021 contribution not yet made. 

Planning 35,278                   (106,400)                             141,678            133.2%
Favorable mainly due to timing - have not yet been fully invoiced or 
incurred expenses for the Municipal Development Plan Subdivision 
Policy review, ORSCC, IDPs and Superior Safety Codes.

Agricultural and Environmental Services (31,937)                  21,280                                (53,217)            250.1%
Timing - have not yet received the annual ASB grant (123k) offset by 
favorable spending. We have not yet incurred substantial charges for 
pesticides, fuel, contracted services and various other costs. 

Recreation (134,987)                (539,930)                             404,943            75.0% Favorable mainly due to timing. Have not yet made the ICF contribution 
($320k) to recreation. 

Comm. Services (303,872)                (333,940)                             30,068              9.0%
Favorable mainly due to timing. Have not yet made the ICF contribution 
($55k) to the community investment fund or other quarterly payments to 
community organistions. 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              -                         -                                      -                    

Deficiency of Revenue over Expenses Before Other 8,431,844            -                                   8,431,844      

Note A Public Works
Labour Allocation to other segments (entry done at YE) (251,000)                   

Gravel Reclaimation - Change in accounting process - partially 
repuposed

185,000                    

Favorable Gravel Hauling due to timing - 50% through budget 142,515                    

Budget is inclusive of a engine or large compnent replacement that 
has not yet been required.

139,268                    

Favorable Gravel Crushing - No longer required -  Repurposed 527,500                    

Favorable Gravel Royalties -  No longer required -  Repurposed 268,660                    

Favorable Dust Control and Cold Mix Products (Q2 invoices not yet 
received, bulk done in Q3)

648,000                    

Favorable Fuel and Grease (on track to be within budget - 60% 
remaining)

262,336                    

P.W. -  Inventory Change (241,426)                   

Debenture payment/revenue (landfill) not yet recorded 68,730                      

Other 166,424                    

**Confirmed with PW that spending is forecasted to remain within budget. 

Transfers to and from reserves are not recorded on the statement of operations under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) until the expense is incurred.  For tracking purposes they are included in the above summary.
Q1: Jan - Mar; Q2: Apr- Jun; Q3: Jul - Sep; Q4: Oct - Dec

Municipal District of Pincher Creek No 9.
Actual vs Budget

June 30, 2021



Reserve Summary
June 30, 2021

GL ACCOUNT STRING Reserve (Restricted Surplus) Accounts Opening Balance
Transfer To 
Reserves*

Transfer From Reserve Ending Balance Notes

6-12-0-740-6740 Airport 329,771 - - 329,771 
6-12-0-742-6740 Bridge 2,309,872 400,000 (9,927) 2,699,944               (A) 
6-12-0-751-6740 Building 200,000 - - 200,000 
6-12-0-762-6740 Dam (Water Storage) - 75,000 - 75,000 
6-12-0-752-6740 Equipment 2,682,182 850,000 (184,461) 3,347,721               (B) 
6-12-0-746-6740 Emergency Management 53,091 7,910 - 61,001 
6-12-0-753-6740 Next Year Completions 101,552 - (645) 100,907 (D)
6-12-0-761-6740 PCESC Equipment 50,000 50,000 - 100,000 
6-12-0-763-6740 Regional Airport Development - 25,000 - 25,000 
6-12-0-757-6740 Road Infrastructure 2,526,101 660,000 (18,843) 3,167,258 (E) 
6-12-0-755-6740 Recycle Equipment 89,388 - - 89,388 
6-12-0-754-6740 Regional Community Initiatives 195,474 133,430 (100,000) 228,904 (F)
6-12-0-744-6740 Seniors Housing 200,000 - - 200,000 
6-12-0-735-6735 Tax (Mill) Rate Stabilization 1,205,292 169,285 (146,452) 1,228,125               (G) 
6-12-0-758-6740 Water and Wastewater Infrastructure 704,560 436,674 (157,917) 983,318 (H) 
6-12-0-759-6740 Wastewater Infrastructure 378,534 4,197 (382,731) - Combined to Water and Wastewater Infra.

11,025,817 2,811,496                (1,000,977) 12,836,337             
*Transfers to Reserves are all the 2021 budgeted Transfers unless stated otherwise below

(A) Bridge Reserve
Bridge File Name Transfer In Transfer Out Budget
Bridge File #7743 Local Road over Gladestone Creek 947 46,000 
Bridge File #75265 Local Road Over Heath Creek 8,980 53,000 

- 9,927 99,000 
(B) Equipment Reserve

Purchases Purchase Price Budget
AES Spray Truck (Res 21/198 + 15k) 13,920 - 
Excavator (Res 21/199 + 8.5k) 40,000 40,000 
Gooseneck Dump Trailer 20,304 25,000 
Tri-Axle Pup 31,502 35,000 
Scissor Neck Trailer 78,735 90,000 
Disc Harrow 25,000 
Wobbly Compactor 25,000 
Air Compressor and Lines 25,000 
Truck mounted intelligent sprayer 20,000 
Two 3/4 Tonne Truck 100,000 

184,461 385,000 

(D) Next Year Completion Reserve

 Opening Balance  Transfer To 
Reserves 

 Transfer From Reserve  Ending Balance 

Admin Artwork 9,611 9,611 Carryforward - Art Committee
Admin Safety Vests 443 443 Carryforward - 
Planning Documents 47,500 47,500 Municipal Development Plan - To be complete 2021

Recreation - Ag Society Roof 5,000 5,000 
Res: 17/435 Contribution to Ag Society for roof repairs, 
2018 - MD Supports Grant Application for new roof. Keep 
reserve if grant not given

AES MRF Setup 19,000 19,000 
Chart of Accounts Project 20,000 (645) 19,355 
Rounding (2) (2) 

101,552 - (645) 100,907 

(E) Road Infrastructure Reserve
Project Name  Transfer In  Transfers Out Budget
Lundbreck Road Improvements 18,843 605,000 
Landfill Road 20,000 
Hucik Hill 50,000 
2021 Budget Transfer 350,000 
Additional Transfer (Res 21/) 310,000 

660,000 18,843 675,000 

(F) Regional Community Initiatives Reserve
Contribution to PCCELC 100,000 

(G) Tax (Mill) Rate Stabilization Reserve
Houston Oil and Gas Write Off (Res 21/125) 73,640 
GIPOT Write Off (Res 21/277) 7,740 
2020 Snake Trail Fire Write-Off (Res 21/267) 64,270 
SanLing Write Off (Res 21/278) 802 

146,452 

(H) Wastewater and Water Infrastructure Reserve
Project Name  Transfer In  Transfers Out Budget
Lundbreck Lagoon 101,944 180,000 
Water Plant Generator (Res 21/199 + 60k) 55,973 
Transfer to Combine Water and Waste Water Reserve 378,534 
Budgeted Transfer 58,140 
Base Rate Transfer

436,674 157,917 180,000 



G2b













G3a









Agriculture and Environmental Services Call Log 

Call Log - Call #1 

1. June 16, 2021, , complained that we sprayed some alfalfa in
2020, Land Location NE 21-6-2 W5, South side of road, respond and inspect by June 18. If
damage done by MD, will determine extent and response needed (ie; alfalfa seed provided if
damage done by us).

2. June 21, inspected by trees that were sprayed but could not find damage to alfalfa.
3. July 6, called  to go out and show me where the damage was done. He showed me a small

area at the far west end of the field where the visible damage was done.
a. Damage was to new hay where we had sprayed some fence line brush causing

drifting. Would have been nurse crop of grain in 2020. We sprayed Clearview and 2,4-D
at 11:55 on July 7, 2020. Clear line of spray damage to brush, directly correlating to
fence (dead on road side of fence, alive on field side of fence) but drift killed small area
in two noticeable places.

i. Biggest area of damage was; half moon area about 2 metres by 10 metres -
total area about 65 sq. m.

ii. Second biggest was; half moon area about 2 metres by 8 metres -totaI$ea
about 50 sq. m.

iii. New hay ran for approx. 300 m, with small amounts of damage extending from
0 m to up to 0.5 m. Average amount damage being 0.25 m over the 300 m
length (generous estimate, most of the area had no damage) -total area about

' '  ,-:-' 

235 sq. m.
1. TOTAL AREA OF DAMAGE -350 SQ. M. OR 0.035 HA OR 0.086 acres

round up to 0.1 acres for total area of damage.

An excellent price for alfalfa is about $200.00 per acre (all in; ie; inoculant included). Time to seed 0.1 
acres would be 30 minutes max. at $50.00/hr (broadcast) 
TOTAL COST= $45.00 

Call Log - Call #2 

June 22nd
, , father of landowner  (SW 2-6-28 W4) called to say 

that landowner to the west had sprayed in high winds days before, it drifted across their yard and that it 
had made him sick for a day. He took me out to show me the damage caused by the spray to the road 
grass (it was all brown but no dead yet). Subsequent calls have also brought up the overspray and dead 
grass. 

This is a big problem, one where we spend a significant amount of time and money. I estimate a 
minimum of $10,000 in herbicide costs alone each year cleaning up the mess left by grass killed off in 
our ditches by over spray. What comes back are weeds that we are expected to spray out. This time it 
was so bad the entire ditch (both sides of road) may have been sprayed out and it affected the 
landowner across the road as well. 

The landowner was ,  phoned and talked to him, I haven't yet. This will probably be 
one of the worst examples of overs pray but it happens all over the MD 



Administration Physical Security 

A. Subject - Detachment Boundaries

1. Crowsnest Pass Detachment.

8. References:

Crowsnest Pass Detachment Boundaries (as of 2007-04-01) are as follows:

Chapter 2 

Commencing at the point where the range line between Range 4 & 5 intersects with the

Alberta/BC border north to the Carbondale River. Follow the Carbondale and Castle Rivers to

where the Castle River intersects with Highway 507. South on Highway 507 then east on

Township Road 6-3 then north on Range Road 2-0 to where it intersects with Township Road 6-

4A (T-intersection). East on Township Road 6-4A then north on Range Road 1-5. Follow Range

Road 1-5 north (and across Highway 3) to where it intersects with Township Road 8-4. East on 

Township Road 8-4 then north on Range Road 1-4 (known as Lank Bridge Road). Follow Range

Road 1-4 (Lank Bridge Road) north to a T-intersection (at sections 4 and 33). Turn east onto

Township Road 10-0 (Heath Creek Road) and continuing in a north-easterly direction. The road

enters the MD of Ranchland No. 66 and the Forestry Reserve area where there are no official

road designations. Follow Heath Creek Road in a northerly direction towards the Skyline Ranger

Station. Then continue north on Skyline Road to Highway 520. Turn west on Highway 520 to

Highway 22. North on Highway 22 to Willow Creek (south end of Chain Lakes Provincial Park).

Follow Willow Creek in a north westerly direction to where it intersects with Highway 532.

Follow Highway 532 in a westerly direction then continue to follow the boundary of the

Kananaskis Country Integrated Resource Plan in a South westerly direction to where the

baseline between townships 13 & 14 meets with the Alberta I BC border. Follow the Alberta I

BC border south to the point of commencement.

G3b



CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 % Change 
2017 - 2021

% Change 
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/- 
per Year

     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.4

  Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Sexual Assaults 0 2 1 1 2 N/A 100% 0.3

     Other Sexual Offences 1 1 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3

     Assault 5 11 18 18 25 400% 39% 4.7

  Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 1 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

  Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Criminal Harassment 4 0 8 4 13 225% 225% 2.2

  Uttering Threats 3 10 4 10 8 167% -20% 1.0

TOTAL PERSONS 13 24 33 33 50 285% 52% 8.3

     Break & Enter 3 8 6 8 3 0% -63% 0.0

  Theft of Motor Vehicle 5 5 2 5 3 -40% -40% -0.4

     Theft Over $5,000 1 0 0 1 1 0% 0% 0.1

     Theft Under $5,000 21 15 16 17 12 -43% -29% -1.6

  Possn Stn Goods 4 0 4 4 5 25% 25% 0.6

     Fraud 4 11 16 16 13 225% -19% 2.3

  Arson 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Mischief - Damage To Property 0 0 0 10 8 N/A -20% 2.6

     Mischief - Other 15 12 21 11 3 -80% -73% -2.5

TOTAL PROPERTY 53 51 65 72 48 -9% -33% 1.1

     Offensive Weapons 0 0 2 1 3 N/A 200% 0.7

  Disturbing the peace 7 6 7 6 7 0% 17% 0.0

     Fail to Comply & Breaches 10 5 16 10 12 20% 20% 0.9

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 8 6 10 10 9 13% -10% 0.6

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 25 17 35 27 31 24% 15% 2.2

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 91 92 133 132 129 42% -2% 11.6

January to March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" April 8, 2021

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)



CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 % Change 
2017 - 2021

% Change 
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/- 
per Year

     Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement - Possession 5 1 1 1 4 -20% 300% -0.2

     Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 1 1 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.3

     Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Drugs 6 2 2 1 4 -33% 300% -0.5

     Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 2 0 N/A -100% 0.2

     Federal - General 1 6 1 1 2 100% 100% -0.3

TOTAL FEDERAL 7 8 3 4 6 -14% 50% -0.6

     Liquor Act 1 4 1 5 0 -100% -100% -0.1

     Cannabis Act 0 0 1 2 0 N/A -100% 0.2

     Mental Health Act 6 20 21 21 11 83% -48% 1.1

     Other Provincial Stats 19 24 29 12 25 32% 108% 0.0

Total Provincial Stats 26 48 52 40 36 38% -10% 1.2

     Municipal By-laws Traffic 4 8 3 2 1 -75% -50% -1.2

     Municipal By-laws 7 13 8 2 8 14% 300% -0.9

Total Municipal 11 21 11 4 9 -18% 125% -2.1

     Fatals 1 0 0 1 0 -100% -100% -0.1

     Injury MVC 6 7 4 3 2 -67% -33% -1.2

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 65 89 56 59 34 -48% -42% -9.2

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 8 22 14 18 14 75% -22% 0.8

TOTAL MVC 80 118 74 81 50 -38% -38% -9.7

     Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Provincial Traffic 90 123 271 209 448 398% 114% 80.2

Other Traffic 3 0 1 2 0 -100% -100% -0.4

Criminal Code Traffic 13 7 8 12 3 -77% -75% -1.5

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 24 22 10 9 9 -63% 0% -4.3

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 1 10 2 6 1 0% -83% -0.4

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 15 30 25 39 15 0% -62% 0.9

     Persons Reported Missing 1 5 3 1 5 400% 400% 0.4

     Search Warrants 1 0 0 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2

     Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) 11 15 25 10 28 155% 180% 2.9

     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 3 N/A N/A 0.6

January to March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" April 8, 2021

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)



CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 % Change 
2017 - 2021

% Change 
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/- 
per Year

     Homicides & Offences Related to Death 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Robbery 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Sexual Assaults 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Other Sexual Offences 1 0 1 0 0 -100% N/A -0.2

     Assault 1 4 2 7 11 1000% 57% 2.3

     Kidnapping/Hostage/Abduction 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Extortion 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Criminal Harassment 0 0 4 0 8 N/A N/A 1.6

     Uttering Threats 1 4 2 5 4 300% -20% 0.7

TOTAL PERSONS 3 8 9 12 23 667% 92% 4.4

     Break & Enter 1 4 0 2 0 -100% -100% -0.4

     Theft of Motor Vehicle 1 1 1 2 1 0% -50% 0.1

     Theft Over $5,000 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1

     Theft Under $5,000 9 3 8 3 4 -56% 33% -1.0

     Possn Stn Goods 0 0 1 1 2 N/A 100% 0.5

     Fraud 3 5 7 3 6 100% 100% 0.4

     Arson 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Mischief - Damage To Property 0 0 0 3 2 N/A -33% 0.7

     Mischief - Other 9 3 9 1 3 -67% 200% -1.4

TOTAL PROPERTY 23 16 26 16 18 -22% 13% -1.0

     Offensive Weapons 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1

     Disturbing the peace 0 2 3 5 1 N/A -80% 0.5

     Fail to Comply & Breaches 0 3 7 4 7 N/A 75% 1.5

     OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 4 0 5 5 3 -25% -40% 0.3

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 4 5 15 15 11 175% -27% 2.4

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 30 29 50 43 52 73% 21% 5.8

March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" April 8, 2021

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)



CATEGORY Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 % Change 
2017 - 2021

% Change 
2020 - 2021

Avg File +/- 
per Year

     Drug Enforcement - Production 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement - Possession 3 1 0 0 1 -67% N/A -0.5

     Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Drugs 3 1 0 0 1 -67% N/A -0.5

     Cannabis Enforcement 0 0 0 2 0 N/A -100% 0.2

     Federal - General 0 0 1 1 2 N/A 100% 0.5

TOTAL FEDERAL 3 1 1 3 3 0% 0% 0.2

     Liquor Act 1 1 0 2 0 -100% -100% -0.1

     Cannabis Act 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1

     Mental Health Act 3 6 4 5 7 133% 40% 0.7

     Other Provincial Stats 8 7 9 4 8 0% 100% -0.3

Total Provincial Stats 12 14 13 12 15 25% 25% 0.4

     Municipal By-laws Traffic 2 2 2 1 0 -100% -100% -0.5

     Municipal By-laws 3 3 1 0 3 0% N/A -0.3

Total Municipal 5 5 3 1 3 -40% 200% -0.8

     Fatals 0 0 0 1 0 N/A -100% 0.1

     Injury MVC 3 2 0 0 1 -67% N/A -0.6

     Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 22 27 13 15 10 -55% -33% -3.6

     Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 3 10 6 11 1 -67% -91% -0.3

TOTAL MVC 28 39 19 27 12 -57% -56% -4.4

     Roadside Suspension - Alcohol (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Roadside Suspension - Drugs (Prov) 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

Total Provincial Traffic 29 38 91 41 172 493% 320% 28.9

Other Traffic 3 0 0 2 0 -100% -100% -0.4

Criminal Code Traffic 5 1 0 2 2 -60% 0% -0.5

Common Police Activities

     False Alarms 5 11 3 4 3 -40% -25% -1.1

     False/Abandoned 911 Call and 911 Act 0 2 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.0

     Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 8 8 13 14 4 -50% -71% -0.2

     Persons Reported Missing 0 0 0 0 1 N/A N/A 0.2

     Search Warrants 0 0 0 0 0 N/A N/A 0.0

     Spousal Abuse - Survey Code (Reported) 3 8 11 5 14 367% 180% 1.9

     Form 10 (MHA) (Reported) 0 0 0 0 2 N/A N/A 0.4

March: 2017 - 2021
All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" April 8, 2021

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)



All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Category Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 FLAG

Theft Motor Vehicle (Total) 5 5 2 5 3 Within Norm

     Auto 2 1 1 1 0 Within Norm

     Truck 1 1 1 2 1 Within Norm

     SUV 0 1 0 0 0 Within Norm

     Van 0 0 0 1 1 Issue

     Motorcycle 0 0 0 0 0 Within Norm

     Other 1 1 0 1 0 Within Norm

     Take Auto without Consent 1 1 0 0 1 Within Norm

Break and Enter (Total)* 3 8 6 8 3 Within Norm

     Business 0 2 0 0 2 Issue

     Residence 1 3 5 5 0 Within Norm

     Cottage or Seasonal Residence 0 0 0 0 0 Within Norm

     Other 2 1 1 0 1 Within Norm

Theft Over & Under $5,000 (Total) 22 15 16 18 13 Within Norm

     Theft from a motor vehicle 3 3 3 8 6 Within Norm

     Shoplifting 3 1 1 0 1 Within Norm

     Mail Theft (includes all Mail offences) 0 0 3 0 1 Within Norm

     Theft of bicycle 1 0 0 0 0 Within Norm

     Other Theft 15 11 11 10 6 Within Norm

Mischief To Property 15 12 21 21 11 Within Norm

Suspicious Person/ Vehicle/ Property 15 30 25 39 15 Within Norm

Fail to Comply/Breach 10 5 16 10 12 Within Norm

Wellbeing Check 3 10 10 12 15 Issue

Mental Health Act 6 20 21 21 11 Within Norm

False Alarms 24 22 10 9 9 Within Norm

Traffic Trend 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 FLAG

Roadside Suspensions - alcohol related - No grounds to charge* 0 0 0 0 0 Within Norm

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations* 0 4 2 1 13 Issue

Speeding Violations* 8 30 157 106 321 Issue

Intersection Related Violations* 3 0 4 5 4 Within Norm

Other Non-Moving Violation* 18 21 31 32 51 Issue

Pursuits** 0 0 0 0 1 Issue

Other CC Traffic** 0 0 2 3 0 Within Norm
*"Actual"    **"Reported"

Categories flagged with "Issue" only indicate that the current number of offences are higher the statistical norm based on previous years.

January to March: 2017 - 2021
April 8, 2021

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment
Crime Statistics (Actual)



Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment - Break and Enters (includes unlawfully in a dwelling place)

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 3 3 2 4 1 2 1 6 3 5 5 0

Running Total 3 6 8 12 13 15 16 22 25 30 35 35

Quarter

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 2 1 0

Running Total 2 3 3

Quarter

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 3 0 2 1 1 2 4 1 1 2 3 2

Running Total 3 3 5 6 7 9 13 14 15 17 20 22

Quarter

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 1 1 1

Running Total 1 2 3

Quarter

Year over Year 
% Change

-67% -33% -40%

2021

3 TBD TBD TBD

2020

5 4 6 7

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment - Theft of Motor Vehicles (includes taking without consent)
April 8, 2021

Year over Year 
% Change

-33% -50% -63%

2021

3 TBD TBD TBD

April 8, 2021

2020

8 7 10 10



Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment - Theft Under $5,000

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 7 7 3 6 9 10 13 10 20 10 8 7

Running Total 7 14 17 23 32 42 55 65 85 95 103 110

Quarter

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 6 2 4

Running Total 6 8 12

Quarter

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed"

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 3 3 2 3 1 2 7 1 5 1 3 2

Running Total 3 6 8 11 12 14 21 22 27 28 31 33

Quarter

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Actuals 4 1 1

Running Total 4 5 6

Quarter

-17% -25%Year over Year 
% Change

33%

2021

6 TBD TBD TBD

2020

8 6 13 6

Crowsnest Pass Provincial Detachment - Theft from Motor Vehicles
April 8, 2021

Year over Year 
% Change

-14% -43% -29%

2021

12 TBD TBD TBD

April 8, 2021

2020

17 25 43 25



G3c















G3d





























G3e















G3f













G3g













G4a









From:
To:
Subject:
Date:

 MDInfo
Blue Bridge
July 6, 2021 1:14:32 PM

MD Council,

I would like to bring your attention an issue at "Blue Bridge" on the Castle River.
During last summer and now this summers recent heat wave the location has been very
popular with people attending to cool off in the water.  The sheer number of vehicles far
exceeds what there is for safe parking areas.  Recreationalists do not even attempt to park off
the roadway.
On Saturday I was passing over the bridge with a 16 foot Mower.  I could not even get to the
Bridge to cross it.  Vehicles parked on the North side of the bridge along the guardrails
prevented me accessing the bridge.  I had to dismount and walk out on the bridge, and after
some conversing with all the swimmers under the bridge found the owners of the vehicles and
asked them to move. When I returned to my mower, vehicles were lined up behind me
preventing me from backing up to allow vehicles on the guardrails to move.
Once I crossed the bridge I had to drive extremely carefully to avoid numerous vehicles
parked on both sides.  At on point  I had to lower my header to the ground to pass under the
mirrors of  vehicles on each side.
Numerous vehicles had people accessing them with doors open again blocking free access.
Children crossing the bridge deck thought they could stand on the edge so I could pass. It was
obvious very quickly that I have just inches on either side of my machine, so they returned to
the open side of the bridge.
I the very near future I will be hauling wagon loads of hay home across the bridge.  The
wagons width will be close to 14 feet and 40 feet in length.  This units travels fast and I may
not be able to avoid vehicles parked too close to the main road surface.  There is simply too
many vehicles and people parked in an unsafe manner on either side of the bridge.  I do not
want to see anyone hurt.  It must be recognized this is an MD road that must be kept clear of
parked vehicles and pedestrians to provide free movement of traffic.
I cannot offer any solution but I worry about safety at this location!
Sincerely, 
Brent Barbero

Sent from my Galaxy

H1a

mailto:MDInfo@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca


From: Tasha Blumenthal <tasha@RMAlberta.com> 
Sent: June 29, 2021 10:33 AM
Cc: RMA Board Dist <AAMDCBoardDist@aamdc.com>; Alex Mochid <alex@rmalberta.com>; Wyatt Skovron <wyatt@RMAlberta.com>
Subject: Seeking Input - RMA Submission on AER Directive XXX: Licensee Lift-cycle Management

Good morning RMA Mayors, Reeves and CAOs,

In July 2020, the Government of Alberta announced a new liability management framework and directed the Alberta Energy Regulator (AER) to develop new liability
management programs to implement the policy. The AER is building programs, systems, and processes to implement government’s policy and help industry reduce liability
in the oil and gas sector.

The AER has drafted a new directive and is seeking feedback on Directive XXX: Licensee Life-cycle Management. Highlights under this directive are that it:  
- introduces a holistic assessment of a licensee’s capabilities and performance across the energy development life cycle, which will be supported by the licensee

capability assessment (LCA) system;
- introduces the licensee management program, which outlines how licensee management will occur across the energy development life cycle;
- introduces the inventory reduction program, which sets mandatory closure spend targets for closure activities and spends by licensees (2022 industry mandatory

targets were announced in Bulletin 2021-23);
- updates application requirements related to the licence transfer process; and
- describes security collection under the directive.

The deadline for feedback on Directive XXX is July 25, 2021 and the RMA is currently working on a submission. We are encouraging members to submit their thoughts and
concerns which will help inform our feedback.   The deadline to submit member feedback for the RMA submission is July 18, 2021 and can be emailed to Alex Mochid at
alex@RMAlberta.com.

Thank-you,

Tasha Blumenthal, MBA
Director of External Relations & Advocacy

Office: 780.955.4094
Cell: 780.716.5190
RMAlberta.com

2510 Sparrow Drive, Nisku, Alberta  T9E 8N5  780.955.3639

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. If you have received this email in error, please notify the system manager. Please note
that any views or opinions presented in this email are solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the organization. The sender does not accept liability for any errors or omissions in the contents of this
message which arise as a result of virus/malware infection or email transmission errors.

H1b

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.alberta.ca%2Foil-and-gas-liabilities-management.aspx&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C129efc3af5a74bb304cf08d93b259665%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637605854879661242%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=cGyE6dHQNGVVWpt9HUa3kWu1ceVAuVUVyBrFxopX%2FCU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.aer.ca%2Fregulating-development%2Frules-and-directives%2Fdirectives%2Fdirective-xxx&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C129efc3af5a74bb304cf08d93b259665%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637605854879671230%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=hgVHWQ%2F%2Bke4UaIURwLlQp6HV3mkbJfZwZcwYgtwzoUs%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.aer.ca%2Fregulating-development%2Frules-and-directives%2Fbulletins%2Fbulletin-2021-23&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C129efc3af5a74bb304cf08d93b259665%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637605854879681227%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=rRjTp5zDLdr2YWX8ORd%2FyAQsabTBaz3OiHPfREls%2FjQ%3D&reserved=0
mailto:alex@RMAlberta.com
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Frmalberta.com%2F&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C129efc3af5a74bb304cf08d93b259665%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637605854879681227%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=%2FYJJPjDu6GBnntDV%2FbHOUC1BXgXDm%2B5V5PgrgHC%2BWDw%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftwitter.com%2Fruralma&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C129efc3af5a74bb304cf08d93b259665%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637605854879691221%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=lfY8wxMVCS5tSWTzK6txcz6mgApVCelnXapxDncu0B0%3D&reserved=0






From: Brian Hammond <CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca> 
Sent: June 28, 2021 8:01 AM
To: Troy MacCulloch <AdminCAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>
Subject: Fwd: Eastern Slopes Mining

Sent from my smartphone – privacy limitations apply.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Kathleen Hancock 
Date: June 27, 2021 at 6:31:43 PM MDT
To: "CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca" <CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca> 
Cc: "CouncilDiv3@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca" <CouncilDiv3@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>, 
"CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca" <CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>, 
"CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca" <CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>, 
"CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca" <CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca> 
Subject: Eastern Slopes Mining

Dear Reeve and Council
We are very concerned about the proposed mining operations in our beautiful
province. Our main concern is contamination of the water, destruction of lands for
recreation and the tourist industry as well as air pollution. It has been proven that

H1c

mailto:CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv4@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv3@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv3@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv5@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv2@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
mailto:CouncilDiv1@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca


mining in BC has impacted all these concerns.

We would urge you to support the Mayor of High River in his efforts to retain the
beauty, living conditions and industries (eg. Tourism) in our province on which many
people depend. Mining will only bring in a fraction of the revenue and job losses will
outweigh any gains.

Below is an article outlining Craig Snodgrass’s concerns. Please support him.

Thank you for considering this.

Kathleen and John Hancock

So far, 20 municipalities, one First Nation, five organizations and one business have
endorsed High River's proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy (ACRP).
Craig Snodgrass - Mayor of High River will compile a list of everyone who has endorsed
this policy and present it to the coal consultation committee, which is preparing a
recommendation on the future of coal mining to the Alberta government.
The High River policy basically says there will be no new coal mining allowed anywhere
on the Eastern Slopes, that all existing mines now in operation will be allowed to retire,
and that all public land damaged by coal mine exploration must be fully reclaimed by
the end of 2025.
If your municipality, First Nation, organization or business hasn't signed it yet, now's
the time.
The policy itself appears at the bottom of this post.
If you'd like me to email a full copy, please contact me at bmasterman@highriver.ca.
Municipalities that have endorsed the policy to date are: High River, City of Lethbridge,
County of Lethbridge, Longview, MD of Ranchland, Calmar, Wembley, Milo. Stavely,
Warburg, Grimshaw, Tofield, Vegreville, Hanna, Coalhurst, Lamont, St. Paul, County of
40 Mile, Girouxville and Athabasca.
The Town of High River sent emails to all 344 Alberta municipalities and all First Nations
inviting them to endorse the Coal Restriction Policy.
Is your municipality or First Nation not among the signatories included in this post?
It's time you asked your elected officials why not.
This is not only a provincial issue.
It impacts all Albertans and municipalities, especially those located downstream of
Eastern Slopes watersheds that would be impacted by coal mining. Selenium poisoning
of our water caused by coal mining should not be allowed to happen - ever!
So far, only one First Nation - Smith's Landing (in the Northwest Territories!) - has
endorsed the High River policy.
Organizations that have endorsed it are: Livingstone Landowners Group (LLG), the
Pekisko Group, Boundary Landowners Association in Cardston County, Alberta

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fmayorsnod%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3DkK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596488577%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=B0%2Bv7D%2BH%2BReYdv3bHys6nzsACacfcoMJ1zvGApy%2F2qM%3D&reserved=0
mailto:bmasterman@highriver.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fhighriver.ca%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3DkK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596498569%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=CDLXphvuRMRXfGcEBHiD3nG36WV55KCxv0NnuK691GQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FLivingstone.Landowners%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3DkK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596508560%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=Rw0MY%2BEDNxkCM1dT9xuET7UApnnXLCdRlBE%2FnpES%2Bj0%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fgroups%2FAlbertaBackcountryHunters%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3D-UK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596518558%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=ZtuNYoWyOsnTiySNLryaaSLOTfpUVdIuYew4e6pZCng%3D&reserved=0


Backcountry Hunters & Anglers and the Alberta Hiking Association.
The only business so far is Fish Tales Fly Shop in Calgary.
Just because the Grassy Mountain project appears to be dead in the water, this is not
the time to get complacent about the future of coal mining in Alberta.
We all need to send the Kenney government a clear message that we don't want coal
mining of any kind on our Eastern Slopes, for reasons listed in the letter below, and
that exploration lands must be fully reclaimed by the end of 2025.
We owe it to future generations to make the right decision today.
Here is High River's proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy, outlined in a letter from
Mayor Snodgrass:

RE: Proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy

Your input on the future of the Eastern Slopes of the Rockies is important to the long-
term health of our water resources and their ability to provide clean drinking water to 
all Alberta communities. 

The Town of High River remains concerned about the negative impacts coal mining will 
have on our communities, landscapes, water resources and future generations. We 
request your support for our version of a new policy that reflects our desire to protect 
the Eastern Slopes and our water resources in perpetuity. 

The Town of High River has met with the Coal Policy Committee and agreed to prepare 
a framework that would see coal exploration and development banned along the 
Eastern Slopes. At our May 10, 2021 Regular Meeting, Council unanimously supported 
the wording outlined below and we invite municipalities, organizations and businesses 
to join us in supporting the proposed policy 

Specifically, the Town’s proposed Alberta Coal Restriction Policy has three key 
principles:

1. No further coal exploration or development will be permitted on the Eastern Slopes
of Alberta. There will no longer be categories within this area and, instead, there would
only be one area defined today as the Eastern Slopes.

2. Existing coal mining operations in the Hinton / Grande Cache areas will be permitted
to retire gracefully.

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fgroups%2FAlbertaBackcountryHunters%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3D-UK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596518558%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=ZtuNYoWyOsnTiySNLryaaSLOTfpUVdIuYew4e6pZCng%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Fgroups%2Falbertahiking%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3D-UK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596518558%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=4dhNsB86x5Gtt3jIpZI3xFUiKBBjxiN89jx%2FeRk1mxQ%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2Ffishtalesflyshop%2F%3F__cft__%255b0%255d%3DAZUTZnztnKEOvjv7DO9UJEzPZYWdjb48JyRN-c-sh_pWTKqjFCseL7ILon1YyIC8AHEB1s-gyizApQVlpbRckiFG8JMp7dX36f8eQHvmhpOPOl7G5IbVHwLTNlUF9qvXKk6NNIPKJpQLu7P1J2PpKq5ILkzL3o3Zrl4qA48rj6nKM1sFYbIlcBNeiRDfZt_tXxn-tZMVwvWY7_G9w69bZhjc%26__tn__%3DkK-y-R&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596528551%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=ZSgnPxsjHCdz4fLmBIJdX6UF5tZVerEXL4eDUyq6uHI%3D&reserved=0


3. Reclamation of lands disturbed by coal exploration activities with coal exploration
permits issued prior to February 8, 2021 must be reclaimed no later than December 31,
2025.

Our rationale for the three principles of the Alberta Coal Restriction Policy are as 
follows:

1. The inherent value of the Eastern Slopes only exists with the landscape remaining
intact.

2. The headwaters and landscapes of the Eastern Slopes are critical to the future of our
province. Our communities, agriculture production, food production, tourism and
recreation all rely on these landscapes existing and their watersheds producing clean
water. Water is a limited resource that we all require to exist. The Town is strongly
opposed to any activity that increases the likelihood of water contamination. Once a
waterway has been contaminated by coal mining, this action cannot be reversed. Our
future generations depend on us protecting this resource.

3. The negative impacts on the environment, human health, animal health and existing
economies far outweigh the new jobs, taxes, royalties or economics that may be
generated as a result of coal development in this area.

The Town will collect all feedback received and present it to the Coal Policy Committee 
in July 2021. 

If you support the proposed policy, please send me a signed letter or the signed 
endorsement below. Please send all letters and feedback to csnodgrass@highriver.ca, 
with a copy to legislativeservices@highriver.ca no later than July 15, 2021.

I will then present High River’s policy to the Coal Policy Committee along with the 
feedback received. Organizations and businesses also are encouraged to make their 
own presentations to the Coal Policy Committee.

Thank you for considering supporting this important initiative. 

mailto:csnodgrass@highriver.ca
mailto:legislativeservices@highriver.ca


If you have any questions, please contact me.

Sincerely, 

Craig Snodgrass

Mayor of High River

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fgo.microsoft.com%2Ffwlink%2F%3FLinkId%3D550986&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7Cc9ecad0919524b7d69f408d93a451231%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637604890596538549%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=o7jZNUuZy29%2FLemFQg9ensDuwGWdrUpRJzfAe0vr4hY%3D&reserved=0


Follow Town of Ponoka online at: Town of Ponoka 
www.ponoka.ca  200, 5604 – 50 Street 

Ponoka, AB T4J 1G5 
Main: 403-783-4431 
Fax: 403-783-6745 

June 24, 2021 

Dear Mayor/Reeve: 

Ponoka Town Council is reaching out to other smaller rural communities like ours to voice our concerns regarding 

the COVID-19 pandemic.  We wish to share with you our concerns for our business community as we believe you 

may be experiencing similar issues.  We would also like to propose a solution for these concerns and are 

requesting your support. 

Over the last sixteen months, our small town businesses have experienced an extremely tough rollercoaster ride 

amid a long string of lockdowns and restrictions.  As we all know they, unlike urban businesses, already face a 

different kind of challenge because they do not have the larger population base that businesses in the larger cities 

can draw on.   

Even now that restrictions are being lifted, it takes much longer for these small, rural businesses to recover and 

bounce back; and given that they have been hit with successive waves of shut downs over the past several 

months, the damage has been cumulative.  We worry that a number of our small businesses may not 

survive.  And we worry about the terrible impact that losing these businesses would have on our community 

considering they are an integral part of our town’s economy.  They not only run businesses, they are consumers 

too. They buy houses and pay taxes.  They are also an important part of our social fabric, as many of them 

sponsor sports teams, coach our young athletes, and are leaders, friends and neighbours in our community. We 

are deeply concerned about the potential loss of these businesses. 

In response to these concerns, we have begun writing letters to the Premier, our MLA, and our MP.  We are 

requesting additional funding be given to rural municipalities.  This money would be specifically earmarked for 

small businesses and distributed to them through municipal councils.  Our position is that local municipal councils 

understand the unique needs of their communities and their businesses, and therefore are in the best position to 

distribute these additional dollars most effectively. 

 Our frustration with government has been that their actions and solutions always appear to be a one-size-fits-all 

measure with the emphasis tilted toward the larger cities in our province.  We understand that we are all hurting, 

but we also can see that there is a tone deafness in particular when it comes to small businesses in rural 

Alberta.  Our concern is that these small, rural businesses are the lifeblood of this province yet they have always 

contributed disproportionately more to our GDP than they have ever received back in compensation.  They are 

struggling and hurting now.  It is time we do something for them or we will soon find that not only will some of 

them be gone, but small towns in this province may start to disappear along with them. 

 …/2 

H1d



 
  

 

 
Follow Town of Ponoka online at:  Town of Ponoka 
www.ponoka.ca   200, 5604 – 50 Street 
 Ponoka, AB T4J 1G5 
  Main: 403-783-4431  

  Fax: 403-783-6745 

 
 

Rural Municipalities 

June 24, 2021 

Page 2.  

Ponoka Town Council is asking for your support by simply requesting that you join us in writing letters to our 

Premier, your MLA and MP requesting more financial help for small, rural businesses.  This will remind our 

provincial and federal governments that the rural communities in this province are hurting, and hurting badly.   

Finally, please feel free to contact the Mayor’s Office in the Town of Ponoka for further discussion on how we 

could collectively pursue other possible solutions in the future. 

  

Yours sincerely, 

  

Ponoka Town Council. 

 



TOWN OF PINCHER CREEK 
962 St. John Ave (Box 159) Pincher Creek, AB T0K 1W0 

Phone 403 627 3156 Fax 403 627 4784 
reception@pinchercreek.ca  www.pinchercreek.ca 

June 23, 2021 

M.D. of Pincher Creek # 9
Box 279
Pincher Creek, Ab.
T0K 1W0
Att’n. Reeve Hammond and Council

Dear Reeve Hammond and Council Members, 

Please be advised that Council passed the following resolution during a Special Council meeting of Tues. 
June 22, 2021: 

McGillivray: 
That Council for the Town of Pincher Creek defer the Pincher Creek Emergency Services Commission 
Funding Formula mediation to after the municipal election in October 2021, with new board members. 
Cd.  

Thank you for your consideration of this resolution made by Town Council. 

Yours Truly,  

Laurie Wilgosh – LGA, CAO 
Town of Pincher Creek 

H1e

mailto:reception@pinchercreek.ca
http://www.pinchercreek.ca/


From: Loza-Fanous, Amel
To: Loza-Fanous, Amel
Cc: Maimone, Sacha; Clayton, Natalie
Subject: RE: Input Requested: Draft Pan-Canadian Rural Crime Strategic Framework | Demande d’avis : Ébauche du

cadre stratégique pancanadien sur la criminalité rurale
Date: June 29, 2021 2:52:50 PM
Attachments: image001.png

Engagement Survey_Draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime_EN.pdf
Sondage de consultation_Ebauche du Cadre stratégique pancanadien sur la criminalité en milieu rural_FR.pdf

(Le français suit l’anglais)

Hello,

Your knowledge and expertise in rural and remote communities across Canada is important to
ensure our efforts are focused on addressing the elements of rural crime which impact Canadians
the most. As such, we are contacting you to seek your input on a draft Pan-Canadian Rural Crime
Strategic Framework; your feedback will strengthen the Framework by reviewing the strategic areas
of focus and identifying possible gaps.

This Framework is being drafted in response to the increasing rates of criminal activity in rural and
remote communities since 2014. Its development is being led by a Working Group on Rural Crime,
co-chaired by the Alberta Justice and Solicitor General and the Associate Deputy Minister of Public
Safety Canada, with participation from Justice Canada and provincial and territorial governments:
Manitoba, Newfoundland and Labrador, Ontario, Prince Edward Island, Saskatchewan, and Yukon.

We would appreciate your input by responding to the questions at the following link by July 20th,
2021:

EN : https://report-rapport.ps-sp.gc.ca/s.asp?k=162498902604
FR : https://report-rapport.ps-sp.gc.ca/s.asp?k=162498894249

We have attached a PDF version of the survey for you to use to consult on behalf of your
organization. However, we request that only one survey be submitted using the above link.

Who is invited to participate?
National organizations that represent the interests of rural and remote residents including: victims,
offenders, law enforcement services, community services, legislators, and organizations that
represent the interests of women, Indigenous Peoples, racialized groups, as well as agricultural and
energy sectors that operate in rural/remote areas.

This survey is available from June 29th, 2021 until July 20th, 2021.

How we will use your input?
Input received will be analyzed to identify key concerns, ideas and suggestions. Your name or
organization will not be identified in result summaries or external communications. Findings will be
compiled with input from similar organizations in order to determine trends.

Please note that this survey is voluntary. Information collected will be used to inform key priorities
and next steps for the Working Group on Rural Crime. If significant gaps in the draft Framework are

H1f

mailto:Amel.Loza-Fanous@PS-SP.GC.CA
mailto:Amel.Loza-Fanous@PS-SP.GC.CA
mailto:Sacha.Maimone@PS-SP.GC.CA
mailto:Natalie.Clayton@ps-sp.gc.ca
https://report-rapport.ps-sp.gc.ca/s.asp?k=162498902604
https://report-rapport.ps-sp.gc.ca/s.asp?k=162498894249

e ] ool
| CiicSatety Securle publique






Draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime: 
Stakeholder Engagement Survey


Thank you for taking the time to provide your input on the draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural 
Crime. Your feedback will strengthen the Framework by assessing the strategic areas of focus and identifying 
gaps.


Please consult with the appropriate members of your organization (for example, those who are aware of the 
issues in rural and remote communities) and submit one completed survey on behalf of your organization. 







Context


In recent years, there has been a growing need to examine and address the issue of rural crime in greater depth. While 
overall crime trends have been decreasing across the country over the last 10 years, and there is considerable variation 
between rural and urban crime rates in some regions, there has been an increase in rates of criminal activity in rural and 
remote communities since 2014. Accordingly, Federal, Provincial and Territorial (FPT) Ministers responsible for public 
safety have approved the development of a national framework to address rural crime. 


The overall objective of the Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime is for Canadians living in rural and remote 
communities to feel safe, secure and protected in their communities. To undertake the development of a national 
framework, an FPT Working Group on Rural Crime was established. The Framework is currently centred around seven 
key strategic areas of focus that have been identified through research and engagement activities with Canadians living in 
rural and remote communities, including on issues relevant to rural crime (e.g., gender-based violence, the state of the 
criminal justice system, and anti-racism initiatives). We are currently seeking your input on this draft Framework.







Instructions


For the purposes of this Framework, rural crime is defined as crime in rural and remote communities. This includes, but is 
not limited to, small towns, farming, or fishing communities, Indigenous, and northern communities.


The scope of this Framework is limited to justice and public safety systems. However, it is acknowledged that addressing 
crime in rural and remote communities will require a comprehensive and holistic approach that includes social services 
and ministries at multiple levels of government. 


Please respond to the following questions based on your organization’s knowledge and experience with the issues and 
interests your organization represents in rural and remote communities. You will be asked about the relevance of, and 
helpfulness of potential activities within, the seven key strategic areas of focus identified in the draft Framework. 
For areas of focus and activities outside of your area of expertise, please respond ‘Unsure’. Note that we are not 
asking your organization to undertake these activities, only how helpful each activity would be.   


We ask that no personal information (e.g., names, personal contact information) be provided in the open text 
boxes. Should personal information be received, it will not be considered and disposed of. Results will only be shared in 
aggregate form.







Section 1: Respondent Information


Q1 Name of Organization:


Q2 Contact information* for your organization (e.g., organizational e-mail address):
*Please do not provide any personal information, such as a personal phone number or e-mail address.


Q3 What issues or interests does your organization represent in rural or remote communities? (Select all that apply)


Rural or remote communities/citizens


Indigenous Peoples


Victims of crime and/or their families


Past or current criminal justice-involved persons


Law enforcement


Farmers/agricultural workers


Social services (e.g., health services)


Agricultural or energy sector industry


Other


If 'Other', please specify:







Q4 What region(s) does your organization represent? (Select all that apply)


Canada (national organization)


Newfoundland and Labrador


Prince Edward Island


Nova Scotia


New Brunswick


Québec


Ontario


Manitoba


Saskatchewan


Alberta


British Columbia


Yukon 


Northwest Territories


Nunavut







Section 2. Strategic Framework for Input


Strategic Area of Focus 1: Knowledge Development


Definition: Addressing the knowledge and data gaps that currently exist with regard to understanding rural crime and how 
to address it.


Q5 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q6 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Knowledge Development” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Assess national and regional rural crime patterns 
on an ongoing basis 


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Research the risk factors and root drivers of rural 
crime


Research the characteristics of incidents, victims 
and offenders


Develop a standardized methodology to measure 
crime across rural, remote, farming, or fishing 
communities, Indigenous communities, and the 
northern territories


Collect data that is informed by gendered, 
intersectional, anti-racism, and anti-colonial lenses 


Q7 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 







Q8 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 2: Prevention


Definition: Implementing community-based prevention and early intervention measures to deter crime and address, 
where possible, the underlying drivers and risk factors for rural crime.


Q9 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q10 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Prevention” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Support evidence-based crime prevention 
interventions for youth and young adults in rural and 
remote communities


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Support the use of innovative technology (e.g., 
GPS tracking technology), to delay/disrupt/avoid 
crime, such as theft and vandalism


Develop and deploy mobile applications to improve 
communication and the flow of information among 
rural property owners  and police services


Inform citizens, through targeted information 
campaigns, about their rights and the resources at 
their disposal to combat rural crime


Q11 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 







Q12 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 3: Drug Interdiction


Definition: Reducing the flow of drugs, and materials used to make drugs, into the country and across provincial borders. 


Q13 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q14 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would the following possible activity be for addressing the “Drug 
Interdiction” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Develop inter-provincial drug interdiction measures 


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Q15 If this activity would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain.


Q16 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 4: Addressing Victim Needs


Definition: Providing services and supports to address the needs of individuals and their families living in rural and remote 
areas who have been victimized by crime.


Q17 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q18 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Addressing Victim Needs” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Reduce barriers to accessing supports (e.g., 
transportation or communication technology) 


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Expand specialized, trauma-informed services for 
victims of intimate partner violence and human 
trafficking


Expand specialized, trauma-informed services for 
Indigenous women and girls


Q19 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 







Q20 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 5: Offender Management


Definition: Measures to manage offender risk of recidivism and to promote rehabilitation.


Q21 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q22 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Offender Management” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Increase use of specialized courts, such as drug 
treatment and domestic violence courts 


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Increase use of restorative justice measures


Increase access to culturally relevant intimate 
partner violence intervention programs for 
perpetrators 


Expand specialized reintegration supports for 
Indigenous people involved with the criminal justice 
system 


Q23 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 







Q24 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 6: Criminal Law Reform


Definition: Review and consider potential amendments to the Criminal Code of Canada that better reflect the nature of 
rural crime. 


Q25 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q26 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would the following possible activity be for addressing the “Criminal 
Law Reform” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Consider addition of a sentencing consideration that 
requires a court to consider increased vulnerability 
of populations living in rural and remote 
geographical locations.


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Q27 If this activity would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 


Q28 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Strategic Area of Focus 7: Enhanced Enforcement Practices


Definition: Enhance the ability of law enforcement and the community to prevent, impede and efficiently respond to, 
incidents of crime in rural and remote areas


Q29 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 


Not at all 
relevant


Low 
relevance


Somewhat 
relevant


Very relevant Extremely 
relevant


Unsure


Q30 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Enhanced Enforcement Practices” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?


Develop community safety plans and community-
led public safety initiatives 


Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful


Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful


Extremely 
helpful Unsure


Integrate law enforcement and peace officer 
services to improve police ratios in rural and remote 
areas 


Address disparities in funding for First Nations 
Police Services compared to other police services


Train law enforcement personnel to identify and 
investigate specific issues related to crime in rural 
and remote communities, such as human trafficking 


Q31 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 







Q32 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.







Q33 Please rank the strategic areas of focus in terms of their relevance to the issues or interests your organization represents in 
rural/remote communities (1 = most relevant, 7 = least relevant). If two areas are equally important, you may assign them 
the same rank.


Knowledge development: Addressing the knowledge and data gaps that currently exist with regard to understanding 
rural crime and how to address it.


Prevention: Implementing community-based prevention and early intervention measures to deter crime and address, 
where possible, the underlying drivers and risk factors for rural crime.


Drug interdiction: Reducing the flow of drugs, and materials used to make drugs, into the country and across 
provincial borders. 


Addressing victim needs: Providing services and supports to address the needs of individuals and their families 
living in rural and remote areas who have been victimized by crime.


Offender management: Measures to manage offender risk of recidivism and to promote rehabilitation.


Criminal law reform: Review and consider potential amendments to the Criminal Code of Canada that better reflect 
the nature of rural crime.


Enhanced enforcement practices: Enhance the ability of law enforcement and the community to prevent, impede, 
and efficiently respond to incidents of crime in rural and remote areas.


Q34 Should any of the strategic areas of focus be excluded from the Framework?


Knowledge development


Include Exclude


Prevention


Drug interdiction


Addressing victim needs


Offender management


Criminal law reform


Enhanced enforcement practices







Q35 If you indicated that any of the seven strategic areas of focus should be excluded, please explain.


Q36 Are there any other strategic areas of focus that should be included? 


No


Yes


If 'Yes', please explain.







Q37 Please share any additional comments on the Framework. 








Ébauche du Cadre stratégique pancanadien sur la criminalité en milieu rural: 
Sondage de consultation des intervenants


Nous vous remercions d’avoir pris le temps de nous faire part de vos commentaires sur l’ébauche du Cadre 
stratégique pancanadien sur la criminalité en milieu rural. Ils viendront consolider le Cadre en permettant 
l’examen des domaines d’intérêt stratégique et la définition des lacunes.


Veuillez consulter les membres compétents de votre organisation (par exemple, ceux qui sont au courant des 
problèmes dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées) et soumettre un questionnaire rempli au nom de votre 
organisation.  







Contexte 


Au cours des dernières années, il s’est révélé de plus en plus pressant de se pencher sur la question de la criminalité en 
milieu rural. Même si les tendances globales en matière de criminalité ont diminué au pays au cours des 10 dernières 
années, et qu’il y a une variation considérable entre les taux de criminalité en milieu rural et urbain dans certaines régions, 
les taux d’activités criminelles dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées ont connu une augmentation depuis 2014. Par 
conséquent, les ministres fédéral, provinciaux et territoriaux (FPT) responsables de la sécurité publique ont approuvé 
l’élaboration d’un cadre national de lutte contre la criminalité en milieu rural.


Globalement, le Cadre stratégique pancanadien sur la criminalité en milieu rural vise à faire en sorte que les Canadiens 
vivant dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées se sentent en sécurité et protégés dans leurs collectivités. Pour 
entreprendre l’élaboration d’un cadre national, un groupe de travail FPT sur la criminalité en milieu rural a été mis sur 
pied. À l’heure actuelle, le Cadre est axé sur sept domaines stratégiques clés qui ont été déterminés en fonction 
d’activités de recherche et de mobilisation auprès des Canadiens vivant dans des collectivités rurales et éloignées, y 
compris sur des questions liées à la criminalité en milieu rural (p. ex. la violence fondée sur le genre, l’état du système de 
justice pénale et les initiatives de lutte contre le racisme). Nous sollicitons actuellement vos commentaires sur l’ébauche 
de ce Cadre. 







Directives 


Aux fins du présent Cadre, la criminalité en milieu rural est définie comme étant la criminalité dans les collectivités rurales 
et éloignées. Cela comprend, sans s’y limiter, les petites villes, les collectivités agricoles et de pêche, et les collectivités 
autochtones et du Nord. 


La portée de ce cadre est limitée aux systèmes de justice et de sécurité publique. Cependant, il est reconnu que la lutte 
contre la criminalité dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées nécessitera une approche globale et holistique qui 
comprend les services sociaux et les ministères à plusieurs niveaux de gouvernement.


Veuillez répondre aux questions suivantes en fonction des connaissances et de l’expérience de votre organisation 
relativement aux enjeux et aux intérêts qui concernant votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées. On 
vous posera des questions sur la pertinence et l'utilité des activités potentielles au sein des sept domaines 
stratégiques clés identifiés dans le projet de cadre. Pour les domaines d’intérêt et les activités en dehors de votre 
domaine d’expertise, veuillez répondre «Incertain». Notez que nous ne demandons pas à votre organisation 
d'entreprendre ces activités, mais seulement à quel point chaque activité serait utile.   


Nous demandons qu'aucune information personnelle (par exemple, noms, coordonnées personnelles) ne soit fournie dans 
les zones de texte ouvertes. Si des informations personnelles sont reçues, elles ne seront pas prises en compte et 
éliminées. Les résultats ne seront partagés que sous forme agrégée.







Section 1. Renseignements sur le répondant


Q1 Nom de l’organisation :


Q2 Coordonnées* de votre organisation (par exemple, adresse e-mail de l'organisation):
* Veuillez ne fournir aucune information personnelle, telle qu'un numéro de téléphone personnel ou une adresse e-mail.


Q3 Quels enjeux ou intérêts concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées? (Choisissez toutes les 
réponses qui s’appliquent)


Collectivités et citoyens ruraux ou éloignés


Peuples autochtones


Victimes d’actes criminels et/ou leur famille


Personnes ayant ou ayant eu des démêlés avec la justice pénale


Application de la loi


Agriculteurs/travailleurs agricoles


Services sociaux (p. ex., services de santé)


Industrie agricole ou secteur de l’énergie


Autre


Si 'Autre', veuillez préciser:







Q4 Quelle(s) région(s) votre organisation représente-t-elle? (Choisissez toutes les réponses qui s’appliquent)


Canada (organisation nationale)


Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador


Île-du-Prince-Édouard


Nouvelle-Écosse


Nouveau-Brunswick


Québec


Ontario


Manitoba


Saskatchewan


Alberta


Colombie britannique


Yukon 


Territoires du nord-ouest


Nunavut







Section 2. Commentaires sur le Cadre stratégique 


Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 1 : Développement des connaissances


Définition : Combler les lacunes actuelles en matière de connaissances et de données pour comprendre la criminalité en 
milieu rural et comment y remédier.


Q5 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent?  


Pas du tout 
pertinent 


Peu 
pertinent 


Assez 
pertinent 


Très 
Pertinent 


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain 


Q6 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure chacune des activités suivantes serait-elle 
utile pour aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Développement des connaissances » dans les collectivités rurales et 
éloignées?


Évaluer continuellement les tendances nationales 
et régionales en matière de criminalité en milieu 
rural 


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Faire des recherches sur les facteurs de risque et 
les causes profondes de la criminalité en milieu 
rural


Faire des recherches sur les caractéristiques des 
incidents, victimes, et délinquants 


Élaborer une méthodologie standardisée pour 
mesurer la criminalité dans les collectivités rurales, 
éloignées, agricoles ou de pêche, les collectivités 
autochtones et les territoires du Nord


Recueillir des données fondées sur des optiques 
sexospécifiques, intersectionnelles, antiracistes et 
anticoloniales







Q7 Si certaines activités seront légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer. 


Q8 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 2 : Prévention


Définition : Mettre en œuvre des mesures de prévention et d’intervention communautaires précoces pour lutter contre la 
criminalité et s’attaquer, dans la mesure du possible, aux facteurs sous-jacents et aux facteurs de risque relatifs à la 
criminalité en milieu rural.


Q9 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent? 


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent


Assez 
pertinent


Très 
pertinent


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain


Q10 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure chacune des activités suivantes serait-elle 
utile pour aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Prévention » dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées?


Soutenir les interventions de prévention du crime 
fondées sur des données probantes pour les 
adolescents et les jeunes adultes dans les 
collectivités rurales et éloignées


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Soutenir l’utilisation des technologies novatrices (p. 
ex. technologie de suivi par GPS) pour ralentir, 
perturber et empêcher les crimes, comme le vol et 
le vandalisme.


Élaborer et déployer des applications mobiles pour 
améliorer la communication et la circulation de 
l’information entre les propriétaires ruraux et les 
services de police


Au moyen de campagnes d’information ciblées, 
informer les citoyens de leurs droits et des 
ressources à leur disposition pour lutter contre la 
criminalité en milieu rural







Q11 Si certaines activités seront légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer.  


Q12 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 3 : Répression des drogues


Définition : Réduire la circulation des drogues et des matériaux utilisés pour fabriquer des drogues au pays et entre les 
provinces. 


Q13 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent? 


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent


Assez 
pertinent


Très 
pertinent


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain


Q14 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure l’activité suivante serait-elle utile pour 
aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Répression des drogues » dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées?


Élaborer des mesures interprovinciales en matière 
de répression des drogues 


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Q15 Si cette activité serait légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez fournir une explication. 


Q16 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 4 : Répondre aux besoins des victimes


Définition : Fournir des services et du soutien pour répondre aux besoins des personnes et de leurs familles qui vivent 
dans des régions rurales et éloignées et qui ont été victimes d’actes criminels.


Q17 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent? 


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent


Assez 
pertinent


Très 
pertinent


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain


Q18 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure chacune des activités suivantes serait-elle 
utile pour aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Répondre aux besoins des victimes » dans les collectivités rurales et 
éloignées?


Réduire les obstacles à l’accès aux mesures de 
soutien (p. ex. du transport ou des technologies de 
communication)  


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Élargir les services spécialisés tenant compte des 
traumatismes pour les victimes de violence 
conjugale et de la traite de personnes


Élargir les services spécialisés tenant compte des 
traumatismes qui sont offerts aux femmes et aux 
filles autochtones


Q19 Si certaines activités seront légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer.







Q20 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utiles qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 5 : Gestion des délinquants


Définitions : Mesures de gestion du risque de récidive et de réadaptation des délinquants


Q21 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent?  


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent


Assez 
pertinent


Très 
pertinent


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain


Q22 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure chacune des activités suivantes serait-elle 
utile pour aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Gestion des délinquants » dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées?


Accroître le recours à des tribunaux spécialisés, 
comme les tribunaux de traitement de la 
toxicomanie et de la violence familiale


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Accroître le recours à des mesures de justice 
réparatrice


Accroître l’accès, pour les auteurs de violence 
conjugale, aux programmes d’intervention adaptés 
à la culture


Élargir les ressources spécialisées de soutien de la 
réinsertion sociale pour les Autochtones qui ont des 
démêlés avec le système de justice pénale 


Q23 Si certaines activités seront légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer. 







Q24 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 6 : Réforme du droit pénal


Définition : Examiner et envisager des modifications possibles au Code criminel du Canada qui reflètent mieux la nature 
de la criminalité en milieu rural 


Q25 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent? 


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent 


Assez 
pertinent 


Très 
pertinent 


Extrêmemen
t pertinent 


Incertain


Q26 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure l’activité suivante serait-elle utile pour 
aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Réforme de droit pénal » dans les collectivités rurales et éloignées?


Étudier la possibilité d’ajouter un facteur de 
détermination de la peine qui oblige un tribunal à 
tenir compte de la vulnérabilité accrue des 
populations vivant dans des régions rurales et 
éloignées.


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain


Q27 Si cette activité serait légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer.


Q28 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Domaine d’intérêt stratégique 7 : Pratiques d’application de la loi améliorées


Définition : Améliorer la capacité des organismes d’application de la loi et de la collectivité de prévenir les incidents 
criminels dans les régions rurales et éloignées, d’y faire obstacle et d’intervenir efficacement quand ils surviennent


Q29 En ce qui a trait aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées, 
dans quelle mesure ce domaine d’intérêt stratégique est-il pertinent? 


Pas du tout 
pertinent


Peu 
pertinent 


Assez 
pertinent


Très 
pertinent


Extrêmemen
t pertinent


Incertain


Q30 En vous fondant sur vos connaissances et votre expertise, dans quelle mesure chacune des activités suivantes serait-elle 
utile pour aborder le domaine d’intérêt stratégique « Pratiques d’application de la loi améliorées » dans les collectivités 
rurales et éloignées?


Élaborer des plans de sécurité communautaire et 
des initiatives de sécurité publique dirigées par la 
collectivité 


Pas du tout 
utile


Légèrement 
utile Assez utile Très utile


Extrêmement 
utile Incertain 


Intégrer les services d’application de la loi et 
d’agents de la paix pour améliorer les ratios de 
policiers dans les régions rurales et éloignées 


Réduire les disparités dans le financement des 
services de police des Premières Nations par 
rapport aux autres services de police


Former le personnel d’application de la loi à cerner 
des questions précises liées à la criminalité dans 
les collectivités rurales et éloignées, comme la 
traite de personnes, et à enquêter sur ces 
dernières.


Q31 Si certaines activités seront légèrement utile ou pas du tout utile, veuillez expliquer. 







Q32 Y a-t-il d’autres activités potentiellement utile qui n’ont pas été incluses dans cette liste? Si oui, veuillez expliquer.







Q33 Veuillez classer les domaines d’intérêt stratégique en fonction de leur pertinence par rapport aux enjeux ou aux intérêts qui 
concernent votre organisation dans les collectivités rurales ou éloignées (1 = le plus pertinent, 7 = le moins pertinent). Si 
deux domaines sont tout aussi importants, vous pouvez leur attribuer le même rang.


Développement des connaissances: Combler les lacunes actuelles en matière de connaissances et de données 
pour comprendre la criminalité en milieu rural et comment y remédier.


Prévention: Mettre en œuvre des mesures de prévention et d’intervention communautaires précoces pour lutter 
contre la criminalité et s’attaquer, dans la mesure du possible, aux facteurs sous-jacents et aux facteurs de risque 
relatifs à la criminalité en milieu rural.


Répression des drogues: Réduire la circulation des drogues et des matériaux utilisés pour fabriquer des drogues au 
pays et entre les provinces.


Répondre aux besoins des victimes: Fournir des services et du soutien pour répondre aux besoins des personnes 
et de leurs familles qui vivent dans des régions rurales et éloignées et qui ont été victimes d’actes criminels.


Gestion des délinquants: Mesures de gestion du risque de récidive et de réadaptation des délinquants.  


Réforme du droit pénal: Examiner et envisager des modifications possibles au Code criminel du Canada qui reflètent 
mieux la nature de la criminalité en milieu rural.


Pratiques d’application de la loi améliorées: Améliorer la capacité des organismes d’application de la loi et de la 
collectivité de prévenir les incidents criminels dans les régions rurales et éloignées, d’y faire obstacle et d’intervenir 
efficacement quand ils surviennent.


Q34 Certains des domaines d’intérêt stratégiques devraient-ils être exclus du Cadre?


Développement des connaissances


Inclus Exclus


Prévention


Répression des drogues


Répondre aux besoins des victimes


Gestion des délinquants


Réforme du droit pénal


Pratiques d’application de la loi améliorées







Q35 Si vous avez répondu qu'un ou plus des domaines d’intérêt stratégiques devrait être exclus du Cadre, veuillez expliquez 
votre réponse.


Q36 Y a-t-il d’autres domaines stratégiques qui devraient être inclus?


Non


Oui


Si 'Oui', veuillez expliquer.







Q37 Formulez ici tout autre commentaire sur le Cadre. 







identified, further engagement may be required to better understand key issues and/or revisions 
may be made to address identified gaps. Results may also be used to inform federal, provincial and 
territorial government outreach and communications materials.

Contact
If you have any additional questions about the engagement, please direct them to Amel Loza-Fanous 
(Amel.Loza-Fanous@PS-SP.GC.CA).

Thank you for your participation and taking the time to complete this survey

mailto:Amel.Loza-Fanous@PS-SP.GC.CA


Draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime: 
Stakeholder Engagement Survey

Thank you for taking the time to provide your input on the draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural 
Crime. Your feedback will strengthen the Framework by assessing the strategic areas of focus and identifying 
gaps.

Please consult with the appropriate members of your organization (for example, those who are aware of the 
issues in rural and remote communities) and submit one completed survey on behalf of your organization. 



Context

In recent years, there has been a growing need to examine and address the issue of rural crime in greater depth. While 
overall crime trends have been decreasing across the country over the last 10 years, and there is considerable variation 
between rural and urban crime rates in some regions, there has been an increase in rates of criminal activity in rural and 
remote communities since 2014. Accordingly, Federal, Provincial and Territorial (FPT) Ministers responsible for public 
safety have approved the development of a national framework to address rural crime. 

The overall objective of the Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime is for Canadians living in rural and remote 
communities to feel safe, secure and protected in their communities. To undertake the development of a national 
framework, an FPT Working Group on Rural Crime was established. The Framework is currently centred around seven 
key strategic areas of focus that have been identified through research and engagement activities with Canadians living in 
rural and remote communities, including on issues relevant to rural crime (e.g., gender-based violence, the state of the 
criminal justice system, and anti-racism initiatives). We are currently seeking your input on this draft Framework.



Instructions

For the purposes of this Framework, rural crime is defined as crime in rural and remote communities. This includes, but is 
not limited to, small towns, farming, or fishing communities, Indigenous, and northern communities.

The scope of this Framework is limited to justice and public safety systems. However, it is acknowledged that addressing 
crime in rural and remote communities will require a comprehensive and holistic approach that includes social services 
and ministries at multiple levels of government. 

Please respond to the following questions based on your organization’s knowledge and experience with the issues and 
interests your organization represents in rural and remote communities. You will be asked about the relevance of, and 
helpfulness of potential activities within, the seven key strategic areas of focus identified in the draft Framework. 
For areas of focus and activities outside of your area of expertise, please respond ‘Unsure’. Note that we are not 
asking your organization to undertake these activities, only how helpful each activity would be.   

We ask that no personal information (e.g., names, personal contact information) be provided in the open text 
boxes. Should personal information be received, it will not be considered and disposed of. Results will only be shared in 
aggregate form.



Section 1: Respondent Information

Q1 Name of Organization:

Q2 Contact information* for your organization (e.g., organizational e-mail address):
*Please do not provide any personal information, such as a personal phone number or e-mail address.

Q3 What issues or interests does your organization represent in rural or remote communities? (Select all that apply)

Rural or remote communities/citizens

Indigenous Peoples

Victims of crime and/or their families

Past or current criminal justice-involved persons

Law enforcement

Farmers/agricultural workers

Social services (e.g., health services)

Agricultural or energy sector industry

Other

If 'Other', please specify:



Q4 What region(s) does your organization represent? (Select all that apply)

Canada (national organization)

Newfoundland and Labrador

Prince Edward Island

Nova Scotia

New Brunswick

Québec

Ontario

Manitoba

Saskatchewan

Alberta

British Columbia

Yukon 

Northwest Territories

Nunavut



Section 2. Strategic Framework for Input

Strategic Area of Focus 1: Knowledge Development

Definition: Addressing the knowledge and data gaps that currently exist with regard to understanding rural crime and how 
to address it.

Q5 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q6 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Knowledge Development” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Assess national and regional rural crime patterns 
on an ongoing basis 

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Research the risk factors and root drivers of rural 
crime

Research the characteristics of incidents, victims 
and offenders

Develop a standardized methodology to measure 
crime across rural, remote, farming, or fishing 
communities, Indigenous communities, and the 
northern territories

Collect data that is informed by gendered, 
intersectional, anti-racism, and anti-colonial lenses 

Q7 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 



Q8 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 2: Prevention

Definition: Implementing community-based prevention and early intervention measures to deter crime and address, 
where possible, the underlying drivers and risk factors for rural crime.

Q9 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q10 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Prevention” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Support evidence-based crime prevention 
interventions for youth and young adults in rural and 
remote communities

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Support the use of innovative technology (e.g., 
GPS tracking technology), to delay/disrupt/avoid 
crime, such as theft and vandalism

Develop and deploy mobile applications to improve 
communication and the flow of information among 
rural property owners  and police services

Inform citizens, through targeted information 
campaigns, about their rights and the resources at 
their disposal to combat rural crime

Q11 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 



Q12 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 3: Drug Interdiction

Definition: Reducing the flow of drugs, and materials used to make drugs, into the country and across provincial borders. 

Q13 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q14 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would the following possible activity be for addressing the “Drug 
Interdiction” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Develop inter-provincial drug interdiction measures 

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Q15 If this activity would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain.

Q16 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 4: Addressing Victim Needs

Definition: Providing services and supports to address the needs of individuals and their families living in rural and remote 
areas who have been victimized by crime.

Q17 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q18 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Addressing Victim Needs” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Reduce barriers to accessing supports (e.g., 
transportation or communication technology) 

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Expand specialized, trauma-informed services for 
victims of intimate partner violence and human 
trafficking

Expand specialized, trauma-informed services for 
Indigenous women and girls

Q19 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 



Q20 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 5: Offender Management

Definition: Measures to manage offender risk of recidivism and to promote rehabilitation.

Q21 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q22 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Offender Management” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Increase use of specialized courts, such as drug 
treatment and domestic violence courts 

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Increase use of restorative justice measures

Increase access to culturally relevant intimate 
partner violence intervention programs for 
perpetrators 

Expand specialized reintegration supports for 
Indigenous people involved with the criminal justice 
system 

Q23 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 



Q24 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 6: Criminal Law Reform

Definition: Review and consider potential amendments to the Criminal Code of Canada that better reflect the nature of 
rural crime. 

Q25 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q26 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would the following possible activity be for addressing the “Criminal 
Law Reform” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Consider addition of a sentencing consideration that 
requires a court to consider increased vulnerability 
of populations living in rural and remote 
geographical locations.

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Q27 If this activity would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 

Q28 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Strategic Area of Focus 7: Enhanced Enforcement Practices

Definition: Enhance the ability of law enforcement and the community to prevent, impede and efficiently respond to, 
incidents of crime in rural and remote areas

Q29 For the issues or interests that your organization represents in rural/remote communities, how relevant is this strategic area 
of focus? 

Not at all 
relevant

Low 
relevance

Somewhat 
relevant

Very relevant Extremely 
relevant

Unsure

Q30 Based on your knowledge and expertise, how helpful would each of the following possible activities be for addressing the 
“Enhanced Enforcement Practices” strategic area of focus in rural and remote communities?

Develop community safety plans and community-
led public safety initiatives 

Not at all 
helpful Slightly helpful

Somewhat 
helpful Very helpful

Extremely 
helpful Unsure

Integrate law enforcement and peace officer 
services to improve police ratios in rural and remote 
areas 

Address disparities in funding for First Nations 
Police Services compared to other police services

Train law enforcement personnel to identify and 
investigate specific issues related to crime in rural 
and remote communities, such as human trafficking 

Q31 If certain activities would only be slightly helpful or not at all helpful, please explain. 



Q32 Are there other potentially helpful activities that have not been included in this list? If so, please explain.



Q33 Please rank the strategic areas of focus in terms of their relevance to the issues or interests your organization represents in 
rural/remote communities (1 = most relevant, 7 = least relevant). If two areas are equally important, you may assign them 
the same rank.

Knowledge development: Addressing the knowledge and data gaps that currently exist with regard to understanding 
rural crime and how to address it.

Prevention: Implementing community-based prevention and early intervention measures to deter crime and address, 
where possible, the underlying drivers and risk factors for rural crime.

Drug interdiction: Reducing the flow of drugs, and materials used to make drugs, into the country and across 
provincial borders. 

Addressing victim needs: Providing services and supports to address the needs of individuals and their families 
living in rural and remote areas who have been victimized by crime.

Offender management: Measures to manage offender risk of recidivism and to promote rehabilitation.

Criminal law reform: Review and consider potential amendments to the Criminal Code of Canada that better reflect 
the nature of rural crime.

Enhanced enforcement practices: Enhance the ability of law enforcement and the community to prevent, impede, 
and efficiently respond to incidents of crime in rural and remote areas.

Q34 Should any of the strategic areas of focus be excluded from the Framework?

Knowledge development

Include Exclude

Prevention

Drug interdiction

Addressing victim needs

Offender management

Criminal law reform

Enhanced enforcement practices



Q35 If you indicated that any of the seven strategic areas of focus should be excluded, please explain.

Q36 Are there any other strategic areas of focus that should be included? 

No

Yes

If 'Yes', please explain.



Q37 Please share any additional comments on the Framework. 



From: economic
To: Jessica McClelland
Subject: Pincher Creek Parade
Date: July 8, 2021 10:23:12 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Hi Jessica,

The Pincher Creek Parade 2021 is a GO! Saturday, Aug 21st. Invites coming to MD Reeve & Council 
shortly, however I wanted to give you a heads up.   I am also working with the Humane Society to see 
if they want to do the pancake breakfast. 

Stay tuned for a flipping invitation!

Cheers,

Marie Everts

Marketing, Events & Economic Development Officer
Town of Pincher Creek 
Office 403 627 3156 
www.PincherCreek.ca
#PincherCreek

H1g

mailto:economic@pinchercreek.ca
mailto:AdminExecAsst@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.pinchercreek.ca%2F&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C8f9ffe2683fe4ed4800308d9422caced%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637613581918461645%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=0t2lHa5dKGj5JvgimZVEZhyXt8x2ADf7vWxjrrDD%2Fkk%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fpinchercreek.ca%2F&data=04%7C01%7CAdminExecAsst%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C8f9ffe2683fe4ed4800308d9422caced%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637613581918471642%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=RprwLoQ5Wt59U2e%2FU6iMl4Rq4RX7sU1rL6ElbuNbl3M%3D&reserved=0






H2a



H2b



H2c







From: Jamie Bruha <Jamie.Bruha@gov.ab.ca> 
Sent: July 5, 2021 2:39 PM
To: Troy MacCulloch <AdminCAO@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca>
Subject: Trails Act Update

Dear Troy MacCulloch,

As you are aware, Bill 64 was passed in May to enable government to collect fees for
recreation activities and put the Kananaskis Conservation Pass and Public Lands Camping
Pass in place. Government also committed to introduce an Alberta Trails Act this fall to
enable trail planning, trail designation to protect trails, and more effective partnerships. The
platform commitment was:

“Introduce the Alberta Trails Act to protect trails for today’s generations and future
generations.”

While nothing is finalized, key components of an Alberta Trails Act may include:
- Designating trails through trail management planning
- Grandfathering well-established trails
- Enabling partnerships
- Recreation management support tools

o Trail Development Guidelines for Alberta’s Public Lands for trail standards
o Area closures and restoration – defining when to close an area or trail for

safety or environmental protection

Please email Amanda Halawell at Amanda.Halawell@gov.ab.ca if you would like more
details about the proposed Trails Act or if you would like to set up a meeting to discuss this
work.

H2d

mailto:Amanda.Halawell@gov.ab.ca


Sincerely,
Jamie Bruha
 
Director Land and Environmental Planning
Planning Branch, Alberta Environment and Parks
South Petroleum Plaza, 3rd floor, 9915-108st, Edmonton, T5K2G8
780-415-8561 (O)
780-886-5594 (C) Dear Troy MacCulloch,
 
 
Classification: Protected A



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION 0155-2021 
adopted by the Council of 

The Corporation of the City of Mississauga 
at its meeting on June 30, 2021 

0155-2021 Moved by: P. Saito Seconded by: C. Parrish 

WHEREAS The City of Mississauga operates on the Treaty and Traditional Territory of 
the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation and Anishinaabe peoples, the 
Haudenosaunee Confederacy and the Huron-Wendat First Nation. We recognize that 
these peoples, and their ancestors live and lived on these lands since time immemorial 
on these lands called Turtle Island. The City of Mississauga is home to many First 
Nations, Métis and Inuit peoples; and 

WHEREAS the residents of the Town, now City, of Mississauga chose for their name an 
anishinaabemowim name which speaks to the shared settler and Indigenous history 
within these lands; and 

WHEREAS the City of Mississauga has committed to a path towards Reconciliation with 
Indigenous Peoples and has responded to the Truth and Reconciliation Commission’s 
Calls to Action; and 

WHEREAS the City of Mississauga is committed to speaking truths about our history to 
further our collective understanding of the past to help create a better future; and  

WHEREAS the terrible uncovering of over one thousand unmarked and forgotten 
children burials at residential schools which have been reported over the past month is a 
truth about Canada’s past; and 

WHEREAS because of these truths the government of Canada has declared this year’s 
Canada Day should be a time of reflection and focus on reconciliation; and 

WHEREAS Gimaa Stacey LaForme of the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation has 
called for this to be a time for supporting each other and contemplating the legacy and 
future of Canada; and 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Mississauga will mark Canada Day 
virtually this year in a manner that provides an opportunity for reflection on our shared 
history and commitment to a better future: 
• Singing of National Anthem
• Greetings and Opening Remarks, Mayor Bonnie Crombie
• Comments from Mayor of Kariya, Japan Takeshi Inagaki
• Comments from Gimaa Stacey LaForme
• Oath of Reaffirmation performed by Members of Council
• Closing Remarks, Mayor Bonnie Crombie
• Lighting the Clock Tower orange to remember those lives lost and changed

forever as a result of residential schools

H2e



Page 2 of 2 

• Changing the digital signage at the Square to “As we mark Canada Day, the City 
of Mississauga stands in solidarity with Indigenous communities across Canada.” 

 
AND FURTHER to mark this Canada Day: 
 
That the Council of the City of Mississauga call upon the Government of Canada to 
terminate its appeal of the 2019 Human Rights Tribunal Ruling, ordering Ottawa to pay 
compensation to First Nations Children and their families, separated in a chronically 
underfunded child welfare system that sees Indigenous children making up more than 
half the children in foster care even though they comprise only 7% of all the children 
under the age of 15 in Canada.  
 
AND That this Resolution be sent to all municipalities in Canada. 
 
 
 

Recorded Vote YES NO ABSENT ABSTAIN 
Mayor B. Crombie X    
Councillor S. Dasko X    
Councillor K. Ras X    
Councillor C. Fonseca X    
Councillor J. Kovac X    
Councillor C. Parrish X    
Councillor R. Starr X    
Councillor D. Damerla X    
Councillor M. Mahoney X    
Councillor P. Saito X    
Councillor S. McFadden X    
Councillor G. Carlson  X    

  Unanimous (12, 0) 



^Fairview
Heart of the Peace

Town of Fairview
P.O. Box 730, Fairview, Alberta TOH ILO

Provincial Building, 101,10209 - 109 Street
Phone: 780-835-5461 Fax: 780-835-3576

Email: receDtion@fairview.ca Web: www.fairview.ca

June 7, 2021

Premier Jason Kenney
Office of the Premier

307 Legislature Building
10800-97 Avenue

Edmonton, Alberta
T5K2B6

Dear Premier Kenney,

Re: Town of Fairview Support for the Royal Canadian Mounted Police

At the June 1st, 2021 regular meeting of Council, the many letters of support received from across the province
in support of the RCMP were discussed. Council of the Town of Fairview would also like to express their support
for the RCMP. The RCMP has, for decades, provided policing to Alberta. The Town of Fairview has a very good
relationship with the local detachment and appreciates the care and commitment these members show in the
community.

Rather than starting an entirely new police service and the burden of cost and management that would come
with that, we believe it would be better for the Alberta government to investigate ways that the RCMP could
receive more support. From 1917 to 1932, Alberta had its own provincial police force, called the Alberta
Provincial Police. Economic hardships led to this police force being unsustainable and the RCMP policing services
taking over. We believe that financial realities would also end up with the same result if this were tried again.

Our local RCMP detachment is well respected in our community. They are visible in the community and take
part in community events and initiatives. Recently, the detachment Sergeant held a Town hall on Facebook to
allow the region to submit questions and concerns and have them answered during the meeting. One of the
most common comments during the meeting was expressions of appreciation for our detachment and all they
do for the community.

Moreover, with many municipalities, including our own, indicating a good relationship with the current RCMP
detachments in their area, we do not feel that a new police service would serve the best interests of our

Community of Choice in the Peace Country

H2f



residents. With only 35% of respondents supporting the recommendation to create an Alberta Police Service,
we believe that Albertans as whole have also shown their support for the RCMP. We ask for the Provincial
government to listen to the voice of the people and redirect the time, energy and funds being used to investigate
an Alberta Police Service be used for other needs, such as RCMP support or enhanced social supports.

Sincerely,

(.

Gordon MacLeod

Mayor, Town of Fairview

Cc: Ric Mclver, Minister of Municipal Affairs
Kacee Madu, Minister of Justice & Solicitor General
Todd Loewen, MLA, Central Peace-Notley
Rachel Notley, Leader of the Opposition
RCMP, Fairview Detachment

AUMA Member Municipalities

Community of Choice in the Peace Country

























Thorsby
r II li 1} 1- > I I »i Bo i II U'() Ki.n •>

May 31, 2021

Premier Jason Kenney
Office of the Premier

307 Legislature Building
10800 - 97 Avenue

Edmonton, Alberta T5K 286

Dear Premier Kenney,

RE; Royal Canadian Mounted Police and Provincial Policing

This letter is presented as a token of support on behalf of the Town of Thorsby towards the Royal Canadian
Mounted Police (ROMP) and also as a motion of opposition to the Provincial Government's recent proposal for an
Alberta Provincial Police force.

After reviewing the Fair Deal Panel's Report to Government (as well as the many letters currently circulating from
Municipal elected officials) the Council of Town of Thorsby is voicing its firm opposition to the APPS (Alberta
Provincial Police Service).

There are several particularly concerning items identified in the Fair Deal Panel's report, namely:
The Fair Deal Panel's recommendation to proceed with developing a proposal for a Provincial Police force,
despite only 35% of Albertans believing the police force would contribute to the desired outcome of helping
Alberta better assert itself with the Canadian federation.

Provincial and municipal governments possibly absorbing $112.4 million policing costs currently covered by
the federal government (which would be in addition to the increasing policing costs incurred by municipalities
under the Police Funding Model).

Furthermore, and perhaps most importantly, we have an excellent relationship with our local RCMP detachment
and feel no need to replace them with a Provincial force. The RCMP in Town of Thorsby have always been
responsive to community needs and feedback, and have consistently delivered professional, quality public safety
services in our communities. In addition, ongoing collaboration between both Detachment and Thorsby's Council
has resulted in a positive and adaptive presence in the region.

We have not been provided with adequate proof that the formation of the APPS would result in better outcomes
for Albertans, especially when considering the Provincial Government's reduction into MSI funding over the next
few years and considering the infrastructure maintenance investments that all Canadian municipalities face over
the coming years. Town of Thorsby Council is urging the Government of Alberta to listen to Municipal Leaders as
well as the results of the Fair Deal Panel's report and shift efforts to Improving RCMP relationships and resource
in the Province. Please do not hesitate to contact me with any comments or concerns.

Respectfully,

Rod Raym

1 I P a 9 e
Box 297 Thorsby, Alberta TOG 2P0 j Tel: (780) 789 - 3935









From: Ash Info
To: MDInfo
Subject: New provincial vaping regulations
Date: July 7, 2021 11:11:27 AM
Attachments: ASH Update on TSVRA July 2021.pdf

ASH Model Smoking Bylaw 2020.docx

Reeve Brian Hammond
Municipal District of Pincher Creek No. 9
Pincher Creek AB  T0K 1W0

July 7, 2021

Dear Reeve Hammond;

Re: New provincial vaping regulations

Attached you will find an ASH Update on Alberta Bill 19 which was proclaimed by Cabinet last month
and will take effect on July 31.

This new provincial legislation regulates the sale, promotion, display and consumption of vaping
products and there are several implications for municipalities.

You can find numerous municipal resources on tobacco, smoking and vaping on our policy hub at
www.ash.ca including a model smoking/vaping bylaw.

If you need any assistance with your local smoking/vaping bylaws or policies please reply to this
email or call our office at 780-426-7867.

Tobacco use is the leading avoidable cause of disease, disability and premature death in Canada and
your municipality can play an important role in reducing public smoking and vaping.

We look forward to providing any assistance you may require.

Sincerely,

Disha Panchal (she/her) MPH, BDS
Alberta Policy Specialist (Edmonton)
Action on Smoking & Health (ASH Canada)
PO Box 52117 RPO Garneau
Edmonton, Alberta  T6G 2T5
Tel: 780-426-7867
Mobile: 587-568-4931
Email: panchal@ash.ca

H2g

mailto:info@ash.ca
mailto:MDInfo@mdpinchercreek.ab.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ash.ca%2F&data=04%7C01%7CMDInfo%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C6f67f7a6e8c244622a7208d9416a4022%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637612746867681198%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=Rp4PYPSb%2FKXyJ6v7mmtGO5uFFzMtUsYP4Xjup6L4zWU%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.ash.ca%2F&data=04%7C01%7CMDInfo%40mdpinchercreek.ab.ca%7C6f67f7a6e8c244622a7208d9416a4022%7C199e33edd80f42e29d84d64c0b3dfdd7%7C1%7C0%7C637612746867691197%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C2000&sdata=UntUjLbkswjl70n1uvVpVc0c8YpSwUUaWL%2F3QP%2BfOAg%3D&reserved=0
mailto:panchal@ash.ca



  
 


For more information, visit our website at www.ash.ca, email info@ash.ca or call 780-426-7867 


Alberta’s amended Tobacco, Smoking and Vaping Reduction Act: 


Municipal Update 


July 2021


The Alberta government recently proclaimed Bill 19 


which made several amendments to the Tobacco 


and Smoking Reduction Act including new restric-


tions on vaping products.  These changes will take 


effect on July 31, 2021.  The amendments have 


implications for Alberta municipalities but they do 


not interfere with the ability of local councils to pass 


bylaws to control tobacco, smoking, and nicotine 


vaping and to regulate the sale of these products.  


Section 7(a) of the Municipal Government Act 


provides local councils with broad authority over 


public health and safety including the authority to 


pass smoking and vaping bylaws. 


Here are the major amendments to Alberta’s 


tobacco (and vaping) legislation: 


1. Alberta has aligned provincial restrictions   
on the sale, advertising, display, and con-
sumption of vaping products with those      
on tobacco.  


2. Alberta has become the first province in 
Canada to align public restrictions on 
smoking and vaping with provincial 
restrictions on cannabis consumption.  


3. The new regulations provide an exemption 
for cigar lounges in indoor establishments 
including restaurants, bars and cigar stores. 


Based on these new amendments, we urge local 


councils to: 


1. Ensure that your local bylaws align restrictions 


on the smoking and vaping of tobacco with any 


local restrictions on the smoking and vaping of 


cannabis.  Tobacco kills 50 times more Canadians 


than cannabis and local restrictions on tobacco 


use should mesh with restrictions on cannabis 


consumption.  The Alberta government has 


aligned provincial restrictions on the use of  


tobacco, vaping and cannabis which we applaud.  


However these restrictions do not extend to 


many public spaces such as parks, outdoor 


gatherings, public events, markets and hookah/ 


shisha bars.  Municipalities can close these 


loopholes with local bylaws.  The alignment of 


these restrictions will help to reduce the social 


acceptability of public smoking and vaping and 


will protect youth and nonsmokers from 


exposure.  This alignment will also help to 


improve compliance and simplify enforcement 


because the rules will be clear and consistent 


(i.e., no smoking or vaping of any substance in 


public spaces). 


 


2. Adopt local bylaws to fill gaps in the provincial 


legislation.  The provincial smoking restrictions 


do not adequately protect workers and users of 


group living facilities, hotel and motel guest 


rooms, public housing or public establishments 


that allow hookah smoking.  The provincial law 


does not regulate smoking or vaping in many 


outdoor areas as listed above and it does not 


require tobacco or vaping retailers to be 


licensed. Various Alberta municipalities have 


adopted bylaws to address these omissions and 


we urge local councils to continue doing so. 


 


3. Close the cigar lounge loophole.  Unfortunately, 


the Alberta government has created a disturbing 


loophole for cigar lounges which can be closed 


by municipal councils.  A number of local councils 


have passed bylaws that prohibit the creation of 


smoking lounges including Edmonton and 


Calgary.  We encourage your council to pass a 


bylaw to prevent the creation of smoking 


lounges in your community by prohibiting all 


forms of smoking and vaping (including cannabis 


use) in indoor public places with no exemptions 


for cigar, shisha or cannabis lounges. 



http://www.ash.ca/

mailto:info@ash.ca

http://www.ash.ca

http://www.protectalbertakids.ca

https://docs.assembly.ab.ca/LADDAR_files/docs/bills/bill/legislature_30/session_2/20200225_bill-019.pdf




MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES



BYLAW NO. X OF THE (MUNICIPALITY) IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA



Being a bylaw respecting smoke-free public places and workplaces. 



WHEREAS health officials have determined that secondhand tobacco smoke (exhaled smoke and the smoke from idling cigarettes, cigars and pipes) and smoking is a health hazard or discomfort for many persons; 



AND WHEREAS the Council of the (Municipality) deems it expedient and appropriate to limit the effects of secondhand smoke and smoking for residents and visitors to the municipality and to protect youth and other vulnerable populations from these public health hazards; 



[bookmark: _GoBack]AND WHEREAS the Council deems it expedient and appropriate to regulate smoking and tobacco use in public places and workplaces within the (Municipality); and in accordance with the Municipal Government Act R.S.A. 2000 c. M-26 as amended, has the authority to pass bylaws respecting: 



a) the safety, health and welfare of people and the protection of people and property; 



b) people, activities and things in, on or near a public place or place that is open to the public; 



c) businesses, business activities and persons engaged in business;



NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the (Municipality), duly assembled, hereby enacts as follows:



SECTION 1 - SHORT TITLE 



1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as the “Smoking Bylaw”. 



SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS 



In this Bylaw: 



2.1 “Ashtray” means a receptacle for tobacco ashes and for cigar and cigarette butts; 



2.2 “Building” includes anything constructed or placed on, in, over or under land, whether permanent or temporary, into which a Person could enter; 



2.3 “Council” means the Council of the Municipality of (name); 



2.4 “Designated Public Place” means a place prescribed in Section 3; 



2.5 “Educational Institution” means a public or private school or post-secondary institution; 



2.6 “Employee” includes a person who performs any work for or supplies any services to any Employer; 



2.7 “Employer” includes any person who as the owner, proprietor, manager, superintendent or overseer of any activity, business, work, trade, occupation or profession, has control over or direction of, or is directly or indirectly responsible for the employment of a person therein; 



2.8 “Enclosed Walkway” means any pedway, bridge, hallway, connecting stairway, or similar structure that is physically enclosed; 



2.9 “Grandstand” means an open air seating facility primarily but not exclusively limited to use in watching sporting events. 



2.10 “Hotel” includes hotels, motels and inns. 



2.11 “Municipal Building” means any of the buildings owned, leased, operated or occupied by the Municipality of (community); 



2.12 “Municipal Manager” means the chief administrative officer or his delegate; 



2.13 “Municipal Tag” means a ticket or similar document issued by the Municipal pursuant to the Municipal Government Act R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26 as amended, and as referred to in Section 8 below; 



2.14 “Municipality” means the Municipality of (community);



2.15 “Outdoor Patio” means an area outside of a building intended for the consumption of food or beverages by patrons of a business providing such food or beverages, and includes; 



a) a public premises where food or beverages are served that is not fully contained within an enclosed building; and 

b) an outside extension of an eating or drinking establishment regardless of whether it is covered.



2.16 “Outdoor Public Event” means an outdoor market, festival, fair, display, exhibition, fundraiser, race, concert or parade requiring a municipal permit, and to which the public is invited or permitted to attend.



2.17 "Outdoor Public Place" means an outdoor

(i) Beach;

(ii) Grandstand;

(iii) Park;

(iv) Playground;

(v) Pool;

(vi) Seasonal Multipurpose Pad;

(vii) Skate or Bicycle Park;

(viii) Sports Field; 

(ix) Trail;

(x) Water Playground;



open to the public from time to time.



2.18 "Park" means public space controlled by the Municipality and set aside as a park to be used for rest, recreation, exercise, pleasure, amusement and enjoyment, and includes municipal trails;



2.19 “Peace Officer” means a person appointed as a Bylaw Enforcement Officer pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, to do any act or perform any duties under this bylaw and includes a member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, municipal policy service and, when authorized, a Special Constable; 



2.20 ‘‘Person” includes an individual, proprietorship, corporation or society; 



2.21 "Playground" means a structure or collection of structures designed and intended for recreational use by children and, where mounted in a distinct material such as sand, rubber, gravel, or wood chips, includes the material in which those structures are mounted; 



2.22 “Private Residence” means a self-contained living premise for domestic use of one or more persons and is provided with a separate private entrance from the exterior of a building or from a common hall, lobby or stairway; 



a) a private residence is a workplace if a home business is operated from the residence and the owner of the business has employees who work in the residence but do not live in the residence; and

b) only that part of a private residence in which the business is operated is a workplace for the purposes of this bylaw.



2.23 “Proprietor” means the owner, or his agent or representative of a Designated Public Place referred to in this bylaw, and includes any person in charge thereof or anyone who controls, governs or directs the activity carried on therein, where applicable includes; 



a) the person who ultimately controls, governs or directs the activity carried on within any premises referred to in this Bylaw and includes the person usually in charge thereof; 

b) a Regional Health Authority Board appointed pursuant to the provisions of the Regional Health Authority Act; and

c) the Board of Governors, Board of Trustees, or President of an Educational Institution; 



2.24 “Public” means any person other than the owner, lessee, proprietor or employer of a particular building or place; 



2.25 “Public Building” means any enclosed building or structure as defined in this bylaw to which the public can and does have access by right or by invitation, whether or not: 



a) all classes of the public are invited; 

b) the proprietor has the right to exclude any particular person; 

c) payment, membership or the performance of some formality is required prior to access; 

d) the public has access to the building only at certain times, or from time to time; 

e) a member of the public has access only if they are a member or if they are accompanied by a member; 

f) Subject to subsection g) and h) below, if the public has access only to a portion of the building or structure, the entire building or structure shall be deemed to be a Public Building; 

Where a building includes a private residence, the following shall apply: 

g) that portion of the building containing the private residence shall be deemed to not be a public building; 

h) If a building contains two or more private residences, those common areas of the building including patios, pools, other recreational areas, washrooms, corridors, reception areas, elevators, escalators, foyers, hallways, stairways, lobbies, laundry rooms and enclosed parking garages shall be deemed to be a public building;



“Public Housing Structure” means any type of residential building, including single family homes, duplexes, or other multi-unit structure that is, wholly or partly, funded by a municipality. 



2.26 “Public Transportation Vehicle” means a school bus, a bus, a taxicab, limousine or other similar vehicle which is being used by a passenger or passengers for hire or which is being offered for hire; 



2.27 “Public Transportation Vehicle Shelter” means any structure with a roof designed to protect a passenger from the elements while waiting for a school bus, a bus, a taxicab, limousine or other similar vehicles; 



2.28 “Seasonal Multi-Purpose Pad" means a surface on which members of the public are permitted to skate or engage in other physical activities, whether on payment of a fee or not, and includes, public lakes, ponds, outdoor rinks with boards or other ice support infrastructure and outdoor basketball courts;

2.29 "Skate or Bicycle Park" means an area designed and intended specifically for the use of one or more of the following:



(i) skateboards;

(ii) bicycles;

(iii) in-line skates; or

(iv) similar devices;



2.30 “Sign” means a sign as prescribed in Section 5; 



2.31 “Sports Field” means an area designed and intended for use in a specific

	sporting event, including spectator seating areas, and includes a soccer pitch,

	football field, rugby pitch, baseball diamond, tennis court and similar areas.



2.32 “Smoke” or “Smoking” means to inhale, exhale, burn, or have control over a lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, hookah pipe, or other lighted or heated device or apparatus designed to burn or heat tobacco, cannabis, shisha or any other weed or substance for the purpose of inhaling or tasting its emissions.



2.33 “Violation Ticket” means a ticket issued pursuant to Part II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000 c. P-34, as amended and regulations thereunder, and as referred to in Section 9 of this bylaw.





2.34 "Water Playground" means a structure or collection of structures that spray or release water which is designed and intended for recreational use.



2.35 “Workplace” means any enclosed area of a building or structure in which an employee performs the duties of their employment, whether or not members of the public have access to the building, structure or area as of right or by express or implied invitation and includes hotel rooms, washrooms, corridors, lounges, eating areas, outdoor patios, reception areas, elevators, escalators, foyers, hallways, stairways, enclosed walkways, amenity areas, lobbies, laundry rooms, enclosed parking garages and work vehicles. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing: 



a) a place is a workplace whether or not the employee is employed by the proprietor of the premises at which the employee works; 

b) subject to clause c) below, if an employee works in any portion of a building for any period of time, the entire building shall be deemed to be a workplace; 

c) a private residence shall not be deemed to be a workplace but that part of a private residence in which a home business is operated is a workplace if the home business is operated from the residence and the owner of the business has employees who work in the residence but do not live in the residence. 

d) a workplace includes any group living facility and all of its adjoining units, rooms and apartments.



2.36 “Window” means a window that can be opened to admit air.

2.37 “Work Vehicle” means a vehicle owned or leased by an employer and used by employees during the course of employment. 




SECTION 3 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 



3.1 Subject to Section 3.2, the following are Designated Public Places for the purposes of this bylaw: 



a) Public Buildings and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Public Building; 

b) Municipal Buildings and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Municipal Building; 

c) Public Transportation Vehicles and Public Transportation Vehicle Shelters;

d) Outdoor Public Events as described in Section 2.16; 

e) Outdoor Public Places as described in Section 2.17; and 

f) Workplaces and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Workplace.

g) Public Housing and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Public Housing residence. 



3.2 No person shall Smoke in a Designated Public Place, whether or not a “No Smoking” sign is posted or visible. 



3.3 No proprietor or employer shall permit smoking in a Designated Public Place, whether or not a “No Smoking” sign is posted or visible. 



SECTION 4 - ASHTRAYS 



4.1 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall ensure that no ashtrays are placed or allowed to remain in any Designated Public Place. 



4.2 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall, if employees or members of the public from time to time gather to smoke at a location outside the Designated Public Place, ensure that ashtrays are placed more than 5m from the entrance or exit of the Designated Public Place. 



SECTION 5 - SIGNS 



5.1 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall ensure that signs are posted conspicuously and in accordance with this bylaw so as to clearly identify that smoking is prohibited. 



5.2 The proprietor and employer of every Workplace, Public Housing Structure, Public Building or Municipal Building shall ensure that: 



a) signs are posted at every entrance, window or air intake to the Workplace, Public Building, Municipal Building, Public Housing Structure, Public Vehicles and work vehicles and in the case of a public place or workplace, at a height of not less than 1m and not more than 2.4m, as measured from the floor of the entrance;

b) be posted inside each public place, workplace or public vehicle in such numbers and locations as the manager of the public place, workplace or public vehicle reasonably considers adequate to ensure that the public and employees are aware of the prohibition; 

c) signs are posted at the entrance to each washroom where said washroom is not fully contained within a Workplace, Public Housing Structure, Public Building or Municipal Building that has been signed in accordance with Section 5.2(a); 

d) signs are posted in the vicinity of any seating area where food or beverages are sold or consumed where said seating area is not fully contained within a Workplace,Public Housing Structure, Public Building or Municipal Building that has been signed in accordance with Section 5.2(a); 

e) Where there is no public entrance to a place or premises mentioned in Section 3, signs prohibiting smoking shall be posted in a prominent location on or near the premises in such manner as to be readily visible to any member of the public using such place or premises.



5.3 The signs referred to in this bylaw shall: 

a) include the following graphic symbol to indicate the areas where smoking is prohibited pursuant to this bylaw: It must depict the symbol in black or red on a contrasting background that makes the symbol clearly legible in whatever lighting is used in the public place, workplace or public vehicle. 

b) contain the text “no smoking” in capital or lower case letters, which must be set out in a style and size that is clearly legible and be set out on a contrasting background that makes the text clearly legible in whatever lighting is used in the public place, workplace or public vehicle. 



5.4 Size of Signs 



a) A sign posted under this Bylaw in a public place or a workplace other than a work vehicle must be at least 20 cm by 26 cm and must have a surface area of not less than 520 cm2. 

b) A sign posted under the Bylaw in a public vehicle or work vehicle must be at least 10 cm by 10 cm and must have a surface area of not less than 100 cm2. 



5.5 Notwithstanding that the graphic symbol in Subsection 5.3 is a cigarette, it shall be deemed to include a reference to a lighted cigar, cigarette, pipe or other lighted smoking equipment. 



5.6 No person shall remove, alter, conceal, deface or destroy any sign posted pursuant to this bylaw. 



SECTION 6 – PENALTIES



6.1 Any corporation which fails or neglects to perform the duties or requirements imposed upon it under the provisions of this bylaw is guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000). 



6.2 Any individual, other than a corporation, who contravenes this bylaw is guilty of an offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding one thousand dollars ($1,000) and for a second subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than five thousand ($5,000) dollars. 



6.3 The specified fine for an offence committed pursuant to this bylaw is established at: 



a) Individual $ 250

b) Corporations $ 1,000



6.4 In the case of an offence that is of a continuing nature, a contravention shall constitute a separate offence in respect of each day, or part of a day, on which that offence continues. 



SECTION 7 - MUNICIPAL TAGS 



7.1 A Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a municipal tag to any person who the Peace Officer has reasonable and probable grounds to believe has contravened any provision of this bylaw. 



7.2 A municipal tag may be issued to such person: 



a) either personally; 

b) by mailing a copy to such person at his last known post office address, or 

c) if upon a corporation, by serving the municipal tag by mailing a copy by registered mail, or serving a person who is the agent, representative, or a person in charge of the Designated Public Place. 



7.3 The municipal tag shall be in a form approved by the Municipal Manager and shall state: 



a) the name of the person; 

b) the offence; 

c) the municipal or legal description of the land on or near where the offence took place; 

d) the appropriate penalty for the offence as specified in Section 6 of this bylaw; 

e) that the penalty shall be paid within 30 days of the issuance of the municipal tag; 

f) any other information as may be required by the Municipal Manager. 



7.4 Where a municipal tag is issued pursuant to Section 7 of this bylaw, the person to whom the municipal tag is issued may, in lieu of being prosecuted for the offence, pay the penalty to the Municipality the penalty specified within the time period indicated on the municipal tag. 



7.5 Nothing in this bylaw shall prevent a Peace Officer from immediately issuing a violation ticket. 



SECTION 8 - VIOLATION TICKET 



8.1 In those cases where a municipal tag has been issued and if the penalty specified on a municipal tag has not been paid within the prescribed time, then a Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a violation ticket pursuant to Part II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. P-34 as amended. 



8.2 Notwithstanding Section 7 of this bylaw, a Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to immediately issue a violation ticket pursuant to Part II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. P-34 as amended, to any person who the Peace Officer has reasonable grounds to believe has contravened any provision of this bylaw. 



SECTION 9 - SEVERABILITY



9.1 If any section or sections of this bylaw or parts thereof are found in any court of law to be illegal or beyond the power of Council to enact, such section or sections or parts thereof shall be deemed to be severable and all other sections or parts of this bylaw shall be deemed to be separate and independent therefrom and to be enacted as such. 



SECTION 10 – ENFORCEMENT 



10.1 For the enforcement of this bylaw, a Peace Officer, upon producing proper identification, may at all reasonable hours, enter any Designated Public Place and may make examinations, investigations and inquiries. 



10.2 A Peace Officer is a Designated Officer for the purposes of ss. 542 - 545 of the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 as amended. 



SECTION 11 - EFFECTIVE DATE 



11.1 This bylaw shall come into effect all as of (date).



Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH)

April 2018





For more information, visit our website at www.ash.ca, email info@ash.ca or call 780-426-7867 

Alberta’s amended Tobacco, Smoking and Vaping Reduction Act: 

Municipal Update 

July 2021

The Alberta government recently proclaimed Bill 19 

which made several amendments to the Tobacco 

and Smoking Reduction Act including new restric-

tions on vaping products.  These changes will take 

effect on July 31, 2021.  The amendments have 

implications for Alberta municipalities but they do 

not interfere with the ability of local councils to pass 

bylaws to control tobacco, smoking, and nicotine 

vaping and to regulate the sale of these products.  

Section 7(a) of the Municipal Government Act 

provides local councils with broad authority over 

public health and safety including the authority to 

pass smoking and vaping bylaws. 

Here are the major amendments to Alberta’s 

tobacco (and vaping) legislation: 

1. Alberta has aligned provincial restrictions
on the sale, advertising, display, and con-
sumption of vaping products with those
on tobacco.

2. Alberta has become the first province in
Canada to align public restrictions on
smoking and vaping with provincial
restrictions on cannabis consumption.

3. The new regulations provide an exemption
for cigar lounges in indoor establishments
including restaurants, bars and cigar stores.

Based on these new amendments, we urge local 

councils to: 

1. Ensure that your local bylaws align restrictions

on the smoking and vaping of tobacco with any

local restrictions on the smoking and vaping of

cannabis.  Tobacco kills 50 times more Canadians

than cannabis and local restrictions on tobacco

use should mesh with restrictions on cannabis

consumption.  The Alberta government has

aligned provincial restrictions on the use of

tobacco, vaping and cannabis which we applaud.  

However these restrictions do not extend to 

many public spaces such as parks, outdoor 

gatherings, public events, markets and hookah/ 

shisha bars.  Municipalities can close these 

loopholes with local bylaws.  The alignment of 

these restrictions will help to reduce the social 

acceptability of public smoking and vaping and 

will protect youth and nonsmokers from 

exposure.  This alignment will also help to 

improve compliance and simplify enforcement 

because the rules will be clear and consistent 

(i.e., no smoking or vaping of any substance in 

public spaces). 

2. Adopt local bylaws to fill gaps in the provincial

legislation.  The provincial smoking restrictions

do not adequately protect workers and users of

group living facilities, hotel and motel guest

rooms, public housing or public establishments

that allow hookah smoking.  The provincial law

does not regulate smoking or vaping in many

outdoor areas as listed above and it does not

require tobacco or vaping retailers to be

licensed. Various Alberta municipalities have

adopted bylaws to address these omissions and

we urge local councils to continue doing so.

3. Close the cigar lounge loophole.  Unfortunately,

the Alberta government has created a disturbing

loophole for cigar lounges which can be closed

by municipal councils.  A number of local councils

have passed bylaws that prohibit the creation of

smoking lounges including Edmonton and

Calgary.  We encourage your council to pass a

bylaw to prevent the creation of smoking

lounges in your community by prohibiting all

forms of smoking and vaping (including cannabis

use) in indoor public places with no exemptions

for cigar, shisha or cannabis lounges.

http://www.ash.ca/
mailto:info@ash.ca
http://www.ash.ca
http://www.protectalbertakids.ca
https://docs.assembly.ab.ca/LADDAR_files/docs/bills/bill/legislature_30/session_2/20200225_bill-019.pdf


MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

BYLAW NO. X OF THE (MUNICIPALITY) IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA 

Being a bylaw respecting smoke-free public places and workplaces.  

WHEREAS health officials have determined that secondhand tobacco smoke (exhaled 
smoke and the smoke from idling cigarettes, cigars and pipes) and smoking is a health 
hazard or discomfort for many persons;  

AND WHEREAS the Council of the (Municipality) deems it expedient and appropriate to 
limit the effects of secondhand smoke and smoking for residents and visitors to the 
municipality and to protect youth and other vulnerable populations from these public 
health hazards;  

AND WHEREAS the Council deems it expedient and appropriate to regulate smoking 
and tobacco use in public places and workplaces within the (Municipality); and in 
accordance with the Municipal Government Act R.S.A. 2000 c. M-26 as amended, has 
the authority to pass bylaws respecting:  

a) the safety, health and welfare of people and the protection of people and
property;

b) people, activities and things in, on or near a public place or place that is open
to the public;

c) businesses, business activities and persons engaged in business;

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the (Municipality), duly assembled, hereby enacts 
as follows: 

SECTION 1 - SHORT TITLE  

1.1 This Bylaw may be cited as the “Smoking Bylaw”.  

SECTION 2 - DEFINITIONS  

In this Bylaw:  

2.1 “Ashtray” means a receptacle for tobacco ashes and for cigar and cigarette butts; 

2.2 “Building” includes anything constructed or placed on, in, over or under land, 
whether permanent or temporary, into which a Person could enter; 

2.3 “Council” means the Council of the Municipality of (name);  

2.4 “Designated Public Place” means a place prescribed in Section 3; 



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

2.5 “Educational Institution” means a public or private school or post-secondary 
institution; 

2.6 “Employee” includes a person who performs any work for or supplies any services 
to any Employer; 

2.7 “Employer” includes any person who as the owner, proprietor, manager, 
superintendent or overseer of any activity, business, work, trade, occupation or 
profession, has control over or direction of, or is directly or indirectly responsible for 
the employment of a person therein;  

2.8 “Enclosed Walkway” means any pedway, bridge, hallway, connecting stairway, or 
similar structure that is physically enclosed; 

2.9 “Grandstand” means an open air seating facility primarily but not exclusively 
limited to use in watching sporting events. 

2.10 “Hotel” includes hotels, motels and inns. 

2.11 “Municipal Building” means any of the buildings owned, leased, operated or 
occupied by the Municipality of (community); 

2.12 “Municipal Manager” means the chief administrative officer or his delegate; 

2.13 “Municipal Tag” means a ticket or similar document issued by the Municipal 
pursuant to the Municipal Government Act R.S.A. 2000, c. M-26 as amended, and 
as referred to in Section 8 below;  

2.14 “Municipality” means the Municipality of (community); 

2.15 “Outdoor Patio” means an area outside of a building intended for the 
consumption of food or beverages by patrons of a business providing such food or 
beverages, and includes;  

a) a public premises where food or beverages are served that is not fully
contained within an enclosed building; and

b) an outside extension of an eating or drinking establishment regardless of
whether it is covered.

2.16 “Outdoor Public Event” means an outdoor market, festival, fair, display, 
exhibition, fundraiser, race, concert or parade requiring a municipal permit, and to 
which the public is invited or permitted to attend. 

2.17 "Outdoor Public Place" means an outdoor 

(i) Beach;
(ii) Grandstand;



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

(iii) Park;
(iv) Playground;
(v) Pool;
(vi) Seasonal Multipurpose Pad;
(vii) Skate or Bicycle Park;
(viii) Sports Field;
(ix) Trail;
(x) Water Playground;

open to the public from time to time. 

2.18 "Park" means public space controlled by the Municipality and set aside as a park 
to be used for rest, recreation, exercise, pleasure, amusement and enjoyment, 
and includes municipal trails; 

2.19 “Peace Officer” means a person appointed as a Bylaw Enforcement Officer 
pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, to do any act or perform any duties 
under this bylaw and includes a member of the Royal Canadian Mounted Police, 
municipal policy service and, when authorized, a Special Constable;  

2.20 ‘‘Person” includes an individual, proprietorship, corporation or society; 

2.21 "Playground" means a structure or collection of structures designed and intended 
for recreational use by children and, where mounted in a distinct material such as 
sand, rubber, gravel, or wood chips, includes the material in which those 
structures are mounted;  

2.22 “Private Residence” means a self-contained living premise for domestic use of 
one or more persons and is provided with a separate private entrance from the 
exterior of a building or from a common hall, lobby or stairway;  

a) a private residence is a workplace if a home business is operated from the
residence and the owner of the business has employees who work in the
residence but do not live in the residence; and
b) only that part of a private residence in which the business is operated is a
workplace for the purposes of this bylaw.

2.23 “Proprietor” means the owner, or his agent or representative of a Designated 
Public Place referred to in this bylaw, and includes any person in charge thereof 
or anyone who controls, governs or directs the activity carried on therein, where 
applicable includes;  

a) the person who ultimately controls, governs or directs the activity carried on
within any premises referred to in this Bylaw and includes the person usually in
charge thereof;

b) a Regional Health Authority Board appointed pursuant to the provisions of the
Regional Health Authority Act; and



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

c) the Board of Governors, Board of Trustees, or President of an Educational
Institution;

2.24 “Public” means any person other than the owner, lessee, proprietor or employer 
of a particular building or place; 

2.25 “Public Building” means any enclosed building or structure as defined in this 
bylaw to which the public can and does have access by right or by invitation, 
whether or not:  

a) all classes of the public are invited;
b) the proprietor has the right to exclude any particular person;
c) payment, membership or the performance of some formality is required prior to

access;
d) the public has access to the building only at certain times, or from time to time;
e) a member of the public has access only if they are a member or if they are

accompanied by a member;
f) Subject to subsection g) and h) below, if the public has access only to a portion

of the building or structure, the entire building or structure shall be deemed to
be a Public Building;

Where a building includes a private residence, the following shall apply: 
g) that portion of the building containing the private residence shall be deemed to

not be a public building;
h) If a building contains two or more private residences, those common areas of

the building including patios, pools, other recreational areas, washrooms,
corridors, reception areas, elevators, escalators, foyers, hallways, stairways,
lobbies, laundry rooms and enclosed parking garages shall be deemed to be a
public building;

“Public Housing Structure” means any type of residential building, including 
single family homes, duplexes, or other multi-unit structure that is, wholly or 
partly, funded by a municipality.  

2.26 “Public Transportation Vehicle” means a school bus, a bus, a taxicab, limousine 
or other similar vehicle which is being used by a passenger or passengers for 
hire or which is being offered for hire;  

2.27 “Public Transportation Vehicle Shelter” means any structure with a roof 
designed to protect a passenger from the elements while waiting for a school 
bus, a bus, a taxicab, limousine or other similar vehicles;  

2.28 “Seasonal Multi-Purpose Pad" means a surface on which members of the public 
are permitted to skate or engage in other physical activities, whether on payment 
of a fee or not, and includes, public lakes, ponds, outdoor rinks with boards or 
other ice support infrastructure and outdoor basketball courts; 



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

2.29 "Skate or Bicycle Park" means an area designed and intended specifically for the 
use of one or more of the following: 

(i) skateboards;
(ii) bicycles;
(iii) in-line skates; or
(iv) similar devices;

2.30 “Sign” means a sign as prescribed in Section 5; 

2.31 “Sports Field” means an area designed and intended for use in a specific 
sporting event, including spectator seating areas, and includes a soccer pitch, 
football field, rugby pitch, baseball diamond, tennis court and similar areas. 

2.32 “Smoke” or “Smoking” means to inhale, exhale, burn, or have control over a 
lighted cigarette, cigar, pipe, hookah pipe, or other lighted or heated device or 
apparatus designed to burn or heat tobacco, cannabis, shisha or any other weed 
or substance for the purpose of inhaling or tasting its emissions. 

2.33 “Violation Ticket” means a ticket issued pursuant to Part II of the Provincial 
Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000 c. P-34, as amended and regulations 
thereunder, and as referred to in Section 9 of this bylaw. 

2.34 "Water Playground" means a structure or collection of structures that spray or 
release water which is designed and intended for recreational use. 

2.35 “Workplace” means any enclosed area of a building or structure in which an 
employee performs the duties of their employment, whether or not members of 
the public have access to the building, structure or area as of right or by express 
or implied invitation and includes hotel rooms, washrooms, corridors, lounges, 
eating areas, outdoor patios, reception areas, elevators, escalators, foyers, 
hallways, stairways, enclosed walkways, amenity areas, lobbies, laundry rooms, 
enclosed parking garages and work vehicles. Without limiting the generality of 
the foregoing:  

a) a place is a workplace whether or not the employee is employed by the
proprietor of the premises at which the employee works;
b) subject to clause c) below, if an employee works in any portion of a building for
any period of time, the entire building shall be deemed to be a workplace;
c) a private residence shall not be deemed to be a workplace but that part of a

private residence in which a home business is operated is a workplace if the
home business is operated from the residence and the owner of the business
has employees who work in the residence but do not live in the residence.

d) a workplace includes any group living facility and all of its adjoining units,
rooms and apartments.



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

2.36 “Window” means a window that can be opened to admit air. 

2.37 “Work Vehicle” means a vehicle owned or leased by an employer and used by 
employees during the course of employment. 



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

SECTION 3 - GENERAL PROVISIONS  

3.1 Subject to Section 3.2, the following are Designated Public Places for the purposes 
of this bylaw: 

a) Public Buildings and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Public
Building;

b) Municipal Buildings and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a
Municipal Building;

c) Public Transportation Vehicles and Public Transportation Vehicle Shelters;
d) Outdoor Public Events as described in Section 2.16;
e) Outdoor Public Places as described in Section 2.17; and
f) Workplaces and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Workplace.
g) Public Housing and those areas within 5m of an entrance or exit to a Public

Housing residence.

3.2 No person shall Smoke in a Designated Public Place, whether or not a “No 
Smoking” sign is posted or visible. 

3.3 No proprietor or employer shall permit smoking in a Designated Public Place, 
whether or not a “No Smoking” sign is posted or visible. 

SECTION 4 - ASHTRAYS 

4.1 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall ensure that no 
ashtrays are placed or allowed to remain in any Designated Public Place. 

4.2 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall, if employees or 
members of the public from time to time gather to smoke at a location outside the 
Designated Public Place, ensure that ashtrays are placed more than 5m from the 
entrance or exit of the Designated Public Place.  

SECTION 5 - SIGNS 

5.1 The proprietor and employer of every Designated Public Place shall ensure that 
signs are posted conspicuously and in accordance with this bylaw so as to clearly 
identify that smoking is prohibited.  

5.2 The proprietor and employer of every Workplace, Public Housing Structure, Public 
Building or Municipal Building shall ensure that: 

a) signs are posted at every entrance, window or air intake to the Workplace,
Public Building, Municipal Building, Public Housing Structure, Public Vehicles
and work vehicles and in the case of a public place or workplace, at a height of
not less than 1m and not more than 2.4m, as measured from the floor of the
entrance;



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 
 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 
 

b) be posted inside each public place, workplace or public vehicle in such 
numbers and locations as the manager of the public place, workplace or public 
vehicle reasonably considers adequate to ensure that the public and 
employees are aware of the prohibition;  

c) signs are posted at the entrance to each washroom where said washroom is 
not fully contained within a Workplace, Public Housing Structure, Public 
Building or Municipal Building that has been signed in accordance with Section 
5.2(a);  

d) signs are posted in the vicinity of any seating area where food or beverages 
are sold or consumed where said seating area is not fully contained within a 
Workplace,Public Housing Structure, Public Building or Municipal Building that 
has been signed in accordance with Section 5.2(a);  

e) Where there is no public entrance to a place or premises mentioned in Section 
3, signs prohibiting smoking shall be posted in a prominent location on or near 
the premises in such manner as to be readily visible to any member of the 
public using such place or premises. 

 
5.3 The signs referred to in this bylaw shall:  

a) include the following graphic symbol to indicate the areas where smoking is 
prohibited pursuant to this bylaw: It must depict the symbol in black or red on a 
contrasting background that makes the symbol clearly legible in whatever 
lighting is used in the public place, workplace or public vehicle.  

b) contain the text “no smoking” in capital or lower case letters, which must be 
set out in a style and size that is clearly legible and be set out on a contrasting 
background that makes the text clearly legible in whatever lighting is used in 
the public place, workplace or public vehicle.  

 
5.4 Size of Signs  

 
a) A sign posted under this Bylaw in a public place or a workplace other than a 

work vehicle must be at least 20 cm by 26 cm and must have a surface area of 
not less than 520 cm2.  

b) A sign posted under the Bylaw in a public vehicle or work vehicle must be at 
least 10 cm by 10 cm and must have a surface area of not less than 100 cm2.  

 
5.5 Notwithstanding that the graphic symbol in Subsection 5.3 is a cigarette, it shall be 

deemed to include a reference to a lighted cigar, cigarette, pipe or other lighted 
smoking equipment.  

 
5.6 No person shall remove, alter, conceal, deface or destroy any sign posted pursuant 

to this bylaw.  
 
SECTION 6 – PENALTIES 
 



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

6.1 Any corporation which fails or neglects to perform the duties or requirements 
imposed upon it under the provisions of this bylaw is guilty of an offence and liable 
on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000).  

6.2 Any individual, other than a corporation, who contravenes this bylaw is guilty of an 
offence and liable on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding one thousand 
dollars ($1,000) and for a second subsequent offence, to a fine of not more than five 
thousand ($5,000) dollars.  

6.3 The specified fine for an offence committed pursuant to this bylaw is established at: 

a) Individual $ 250
b) Corporations $ 1,000

6.4 In the case of an offence that is of a continuing nature, a contravention shall 
constitute a separate offence in respect of each day, or part of a day, on which that 
offence continues.  

SECTION 7 - MUNICIPAL TAGS 

7.1 A Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a municipal tag to 
any person who the Peace Officer has reasonable and probable grounds to believe 
has contravened any provision of this bylaw.  

7.2 A municipal tag may be issued to such person: 

a) either personally;
b) by mailing a copy to such person at his last known post office address, or
c) if upon a corporation, by serving the municipal tag by mailing a copy by

registered mail, or serving a person who is the agent, representative, or a
person in charge of the Designated Public Place.

7.3 The municipal tag shall be in a form approved by the Municipal Manager and shall 
state: 

a) the name of the person;
b) the offence;
c) the municipal or legal description of the land on or near where the offence took

place;
d) the appropriate penalty for the offence as specified in Section 6 of this bylaw;
e) that the penalty shall be paid within 30 days of the issuance of the municipal

tag;
f) any other information as may be required by the Municipal Manager.

7.4 Where a municipal tag is issued pursuant to Section 7 of this bylaw, the person to 
whom the municipal tag is issued may, in lieu of being prosecuted for the offence, 



MODEL SMOKING BYLAW FOR ALBERTA MUNICIPALITIES 

Prepared by Action on Smoking & Health (ASH) 

April 2018 

pay the penalty to the Municipality the penalty specified within the time period 
indicated on the municipal tag.  

7.5 Nothing in this bylaw shall prevent a Peace Officer from immediately issuing a 
violation ticket. 

SECTION 8 - VIOLATION TICKET 

8.1 In those cases where a municipal tag has been issued and if the penalty specified 
on a municipal tag has not been paid within the prescribed time, then a Peace 
Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a violation ticket pursuant to 
Part II of the Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. P-34 as amended. 

8.2 Notwithstanding Section 7 of this bylaw, a Peace Officer is hereby authorized and 
empowered to immediately issue a violation ticket pursuant to Part II of the 
Provincial Offences Procedure Act, R.S.A. 2000, c. P-34 as amended, to any 
person who the Peace Officer has reasonable grounds to believe has contravened 
any provision of this bylaw.  

SECTION 9 - SEVERABILITY 

9.1 If any section or sections of this bylaw or parts thereof are found in any court of law 
to be illegal or beyond the power of Council to enact, such section or sections or 
parts thereof shall be deemed to be severable and all other sections or parts of this 
bylaw shall be deemed to be separate and independent therefrom and to be 
enacted as such.  

SECTION 10 – ENFORCEMENT 

10.1 For the enforcement of this bylaw, a Peace Officer, upon producing proper 
identification, may at all reasonable hours, enter any Designated Public Place and 
may make examinations, investigations and inquiries.  

10.2 A Peace Officer is a Designated Officer for the purposes of ss. 542 - 545 of the 
Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, c.M-26 as amended. 

SECTION 11 - EFFECTIVE DATE  

11.1 This bylaw shall come into effect all as of (date). 


	A 2021-07-13 Council Agenda
	2021-06-22 Council Committee Meeting Minutes
	C2 2021-06-22 draft minutes
	F4a Landfill Board Meeting May 19 2021
	F4b Landfill Board Meeting April 21 2021
	G1a Ops Report
	Copy of Work Order for Council July 13 2021 meeting - UPDATED
	G2a Q2 Reserve Schedules Working
	G2b Auction
	G2b Public Auction

	G3a AES
	G3b1 Crowsnest Pass Detachment Boundaries
	G3b2

	G3c Road Closure
	G3d SALTS
	G3e Irrigation
	G3f Timber
	G3g Update LOC
	G4a CAO
	H1a Blue Bridge
	H1b Seeking Input - RMA Submission on AER Directive XXX_ Licensee Lift-cycle Management 
	FW_ Eastern Slopes Mining
	H1d Letter to Rural Municipalities
	H1e  MD of Pincher Creek Emergency Service Commission
	H1f1 Input Requested_  Draft Pan-Canadian Rural Crime Strategic Framework
	H1f2 Engagement Survey_Draft Pan-Canadian Strategic Framework on Rural Crime_EN
	H1g Pincher Creek Parade 
	H2a STARS
	H2b transportation
	H2c Letter
	H2d Trails Act Update
	H2e Resolution
	H2f1 Fairview - RCMP Letter of Support
	H2f2 Support Letter - RCMP - Madu Signed
	H2f3 Letter of support _06232021154813
	H2f4  Letter of Support from Lac La Biche County
	H2f5 Turner Valley Letter of Support for RCMP
	H2f6 Letter for Support for the RCMP
	H2f7 Letter of Support for RCMP
	H2f8 RCMP Support Letter
	H2f9 Town of Thorsby Signed RCMP Letter - May 31 2021
	H2f10 RCMP Support - Signed 2021-02-26
	H2f11 Cypress County - Support for RCMP
	H2g New provincial vaping regulations
	H2g1 ASH Update on TSVRA July 2021
	H2g2 ASH Model Smoking Bylaw 2020
	Ja Indian Farm Creek
	Jb Closed Road
	Jc Road



